
Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Tuesday, 7 July 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Please note that, due to the 
current coronavirus pandemic the 
Council has reviewed its approach to 
holding committee meetings.  

This meeting will be held remotely in a Microsoft
Teams Live Event (see link below)

Membership: (Quorum 3)
Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman), Simon Christopher, 
Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley, Nocturin Lacey-Clarke, Mike Parkes, Bill Pipe 
and Bill Trite

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, South Walks House, South Walks Road, 
Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1UZ (Sat Nav DT1 1EE)

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on 
Fiona King or 01305 224186 - fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free 
public app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council.

 
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding
committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen
to the debate online by using the following link:-

Link to Audit and Governance Committee

Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android
phone will need to download the free Microsoft Team App to sign in as a Guest, it is
advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.

Please note that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will
continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.

Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its
business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council’s
website after the event.

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YmJkMzI3NzAtNDIxNy00YzI3LTk3YzItYTk5ZmIwY2ZhMmQy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%220a4edf35-f0d2-4e23-98f6-b0900b4ea1e6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2210235b6c-d382-4545-9a28-2288c2103288%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


Using social media at virtual meetings
Anyone can use social media such as tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it 
is open to the public.



A G E N D A

Page No.

1  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  MINUTES 5 - 10

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2020.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

4  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee 
from town and parish councils and members of the public.

Please note that public speaking has been suspended during the 
Covid-19 crisis. Each question or statement is limited to no more than 
450 words and must be electronically submitted to 
fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the deadline set out below.

The question or statement will be read out by an officer of the Council 
and a response will be given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder at the 
meeting. All questions/statements and the responses will be published 
in full within the minutes of the meeting.

The deadline for submission of the full text of a question or 
statement is 8.30am on Friday 3 July 2020.

5  DORSET COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 11 - 24

To consider a report by the Portfolio Holder for Corporate 
Development and Change.

6  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 25 - 70

To consider the revised Annual Statement of Governance.



7  INTERNAL AUDIT 2019/20 PROGRESS 71 - 90

To consider progress against the Internal Audit Plan for the 2nd  year 
half.

8  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 AND PLANNING APPROACH 91 - 96

To consider the proposed internal audit plan 2020/21.

9  ASSESSING AND DEVELOPING THE CAPACITY OF THE AUDIT 
AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Chairman and the Monitoring Officer to lead the discussion.

10  PROGRESS WITH POLICY CONVERGENCE

To receive a verbal update from the Corporate Director, Legal and 
Democratic Services on the position with the headline policies to be 
adopted by 1 April 2021.

11  POLICY HARMONISATION

To receive a verbal update from the Corporate Director Legal and 
Democratic following guidance from the Secretary of State.

12  CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES

To receive a verbal update from Monitoring Officer on changes to the 
Constitution (Council Procedure Rules).

13  FORWARD PLAN 97 - 104

To consider the work programme for the Committee.

14  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall 
be recorded in the minutes.



DORSET COUNCIL - AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 20 MAY 2020

Present: Cllrs Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman), 
Simon Christopher, Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley and 
Nocturin Lacey-Clarke

Apologies: Cllrs Mike Parkes and Bill Trite

Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):
Aidan Dunn (Executive Director - Corporate Development S151), Marc Eyre 
(Service Manager for Assurance), Jonathan Mair (Corporate Director - Legal & 
Democratic Service Monitoring Officer), David Trotter (Risk and Resilience 
Officer), Susan Dallison (Democratic Services Manager) and Fiona King 
(Democratic Services Officer)

67.  Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs Mike Parkes and William 
Trite.

68.  Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2020 were confirmed and 
signed.

69.  Declarations of Interest

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made at the meeting.

70.  Public Participation

There were no representations from parish or town councils or from members 
of the public.

71.  Annual Governance Statement

Members considered a report from the Corporate Director for Legal and 
Democratic which set out the key features of the governance framework in 
place in the Authority and provided a review of its effectiveness.  

Members were advised this was the first Annual Governance Statement for 
the newly formed Dorset Council and had been based on the previous County 
Council’s statement. Since March the report had been updated due to the 
Covid 19 campaign.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

The Chairman made reference to Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
asked when members were likely to see them and if they would be available 
for the July meeting.  The Service Manager for Assurance advised that within 
the risk management update it was key that there were appropriate links 
between risk and performance.  The aim was to align KPIs with the top level 
corporate risks and that would provide an overview for members.

Cllr Heatley commented that he had expected to see how things had gone 
with the new council and was a bit confused about what this particular 
document was for. His understanding was that the review was what we were 
doing now and felt that this should this be reflected in the Annual Governance 
Statement.  The Service Manager for Assurance advised that this was the 
case and that this report was very much a first draft for this committee and he 
was happy to incorporate members’ comments.  He had aimed to keep the 
document quite succinct and the accompanying Local Code of Governance 
went into more detail.  Cllr Heatley noted that whilst risk management was the 
next item on the agenda he felt it also needed to be included with this 
document.  He was aware that the Council did not yet have the management 
information needed to meet what was required in the Corporate Plan but felt 
that systems of control and management information needed to demonstrate 
progress in achieving the objectives of the Corporate Plan but felt that 
systems of control and management needed to be included in this Statement.  
He also felt there was very little recognition that this was a new Council. The 
Service Manager for Assurance offered to look at this area further and to 
include  the experience that Dorset Council has had during the year.

Cllr Gray noted that the document talked about efficiencies and effectiveness 
but did not mention value for money.  The Executive Director for Corporate 
Development advised that this document accompanied the annual accounts 
when they are completed later in the year.  The financial documents would tell 
the story of how the organisation had evolved along with the value for money 
element. Cllr Gray was still concerned that value for money was bot being 
recognised enough and felt it needed to be part of all documents in the future.

Cllr Christopher advised that in respect of value for money members needed 
to bear in mind that this would be commented on by the external auditors.  He 
highlighted the importance of the Council dealing with their suppliers and that 
the review of credit balances on debtors ledgers were also important aspects 
for consideration.  The Service Manager for Assurance advised members that 
he would liaise with the various theme leads and report back to members.

Cllr Cocking was supportive of Cllr Gray’s comments regarding value for 
money.  This was tax payers money that was being spent and she felt that 
value for money should be at the heart of all that we do.

Following a comment about the inclusion of the change to the structure of the 
overview and scrutiny committees the Service Manager for Assurance 
advised this was detailed in the Local Code of Governance.

Resolved

Page 6



3

That the Service Manager for Assurance reflect on and incorporate comments 
made by members in a revised Annual Governance Statement to be brought 
back to this Committee on 7 July 2020.

Reason for Decision
Approval and publication of an AGS by the Council is a statutory requirement 
and provides evidence that Dorset Council maintains high standards of 
governance and addresses significant shortcomings and risks.

72.  Risk Management update

Members considered a report from the Corporate Director for Legal and 
Democratic which gave members’ the opportunity to review and challenge the 
Council’s risk register.

The Service Manager for Assurance explained that he had consulted with 
Heads of Service and Service Managers to see what they considered as the 
key risks. This work built on the risk appetite agreed by the Shadow Council. 
Each risk had an identified risk owner and a management update on the 
current position. There still appeared to be some gaps but officers would be 
following up on those.

The Vice Chairman appreciated the good work that was being done so far, but 
felt that the scoring system was too simplified.  He felt it would be helpful to 
see what had happened since the last time members audited the register but 
recognised it was a balancing act.   His view on linking risk to KPIs was that it 
could be quite cumbersome and it be might be better to link them to the 
corporate objectives.  The Service Manager advised that the scoring matrix 
had been intentionally kept simple to improve buy-in, but this would be 
reviewed over time.  The Risk and Resilience Officer added that officers were 
currently working on the development of a 5 by 5 matrix. When the KPIs were 
agreed they would be looking to embed them to give a true reflection of risk 
and performance.

With reference to risk CRR003 Cllr Christopher was concerned that when a 
Head of Service left the Authority there was a need to ensure there was 
effective support for those who lead in specific council departments.   He felt 
this was a particular risk and mentioned the difficulty of recruiting and 
retaining staff and suggested that should be given a greater focus rather than 
relying on agency staff.  The Executive Director for Corporate Development 
commented on retaining the workforce and highlighted that staff were a key 
part of the organisation.  Dorset Council’s ambition was to be an Employer of 
Choice and wanted people to stay working with the Authority. He made 
reference to the recent convergence work and ultimate loss of some staff and 
that during this current crisis a secure job in local government could be more 
attractive. The Senior Leadership Team had  learnt that office based staff 
didn’t need to actually be in the office and therefore this could result in 
widening the search for staff and not have to relocate them.  What the modern 
office looks like post Covid would be very interesting.

Page 7



4

Following a question from a member about the period of time over which risks 
were assessed, the Service Manager for Assurance advised, it was ordinarily 
around a 3 year cycle but some would be longer term judgements for example 
Climate Change. The Chairman felt it would be helpful to add time parameters 
to the risks.

In respect of the new ways of working the Vice-Chairman considered if there 
would be an Opportunity Register along with a Risk Register as this could 
yield some good ideas.  The Service Manager agreed this would be important 
and that the risk framework would pick up on opportunities once fully 
embedded.
With reference to the Council being an Employer of Choice, Cllr Christopher 
commented that he would like to see this completed within 4 years.  In respect 
of virtual meetings he made reference that 30% of Dorset’s population didn’t 
engage in social media and considered whether we needed to engage better 
with our rural areas. He suggested perhaps having a rural services champion.

The Executive Director for Corporate Development advised members that the 
People Plan had been considered by the Cabinet which had set out the 
timescales.  A staff survey had been carried out earlier in the year about how 
committed people felt towards the organisation.  There was also a short pulse 
survey carried out recently to see how staff felt and the results from this would 
feed into the Plan.  With regards to technology, the Council was pushing hard 
with BT for people to have faster broadband lines.  The Executive Director 
was happy to pass the message on to the Leader about the possibility of a 
rural services champion.

It was felt that a reference to value for money should be included within the 
risk register and the Service Manager for Assurance undertook to focus 
discussions with the risk owners on value for money.  It was suggested that 
the money saved from less meetings and less travel during this pandemic 
should be offered as a positive point.  The Executive Director for Corporate 
Development assured members that officers did strive for value for money 
through different processes but accepted that this had not been conveyed 
enough through the documents presented today. 

Cllr Gray commented that in the future he would welcome a discussion on the 
processes and procedures that hindered the Council in obtaining  value for 
money. One member also noted that in future it would important to question 
the external auditors in respect of benchmarking Dorset Council against other 
councils in respect of value for money. 

Following a comment about dependence on a very few suppliers especially in 
respect of social care, the Executive Director for Corporate Development 
advised that part of the council’s management of suppliers was understanding 
the resilience of the organisation and what contingency plans they had in 
place.

Following a suggestion from the Chairman to perhaps have service heads 
present to enable a more thorough discussion, the Service Manager for 
Assurance replied that in future if there were particular risks that members 

Page 8



5

wished to focus on arrangements could be made for the risk owner to give 
further input.  Members needed reassurance they could speak to the risk 
manager in order to thoroughly investigate any matter further.  The Risk and 
Resilience Officer advised members that he would be providing regular 
updates for members following meetings with the accountable officers on a 
monthly basis, he also planned to hold specific risk surgeries and there would 
also be pages on Sharepoint designed to give officers and members further 
information.

The Corporate Director for Legal and Democratic suggested that in light of 
members’ comments around value for money and procedures that an item be 
added to the Committee’s work programme.  Members felt this would be 
helpful and would be important to focus perhaps on a particular area initially 
as the Council was such a large organisation.  The Executive Director for 
Corporate Development undertook to discuss this further with colleagues and 
aim to produce something that complemented work that was already ongoing.

Resolved
That an item on value for money be added to the Committee’s Work 
Programme.

73.  Urgent items

The following items of business were considered by the Chairman as urgent 
pursuant to section 100B (4) b) of the Local Government Act 1972. The item 
was considered to be urgent because of the ongoing need to assess Code of 
Conduct complaints despite the limitations caused the current Covid-19 
situation.

Delegation to the Monitoring Officer with regard to Code of Conduct 
Complaints
The Monitoring Officer reminded members that member conduct and member 
behaviour was part of this committee’s remit, not just Dorset Councillors but 
also town and parish councillors.    There were 2 sub committees that 
supported this work. Assessment sub-committee meetings were held in a 
confidential session to decide whether complaints warranted investigation. 
Hearing sub-committees were held in public to decide to hear the outcomes of 
investigations and make decisions on complaints. 

Over the past few months business has been building up and there was 
pressing concerns regarding one council.  The Monitoring Officer requested a 
delegation to enable the Monitoring Officer to meet with a small panel of 
members to carry out the initial assessment of complaints.  The delegation 
would be in consultation with three members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Councillor Lacey-Clarke felt uncomfortable with complaints not going to a 
proper sub-committee as he was not really in support of anything that 
removed the final decision making from councillors. He asked if it would be 
possible for delegation to be given to the Chairman of the Audit and 

Page 9



6

Governance Committee instead.  The Monitoring Officer advised that except 
in relation to executive business the law [prevented delegations being given to 
an individual member.

The Monitoring Officer also explained the practical implications for Democratic 
Services of running virtual meetings and the agreement of Group Leaders that 
virtual meeting would be limited to meetings of the Cabinet, Audit and 
Governance Committee, Overview and Scrutiny, Area Planning and 
Licensing.

In answer to a question from the Chairman, the Monitoring Officer confirmed 
that any delegation would only be in place for the time when the Authority was 
running virtual meetings.

Following a question from a member about the size of the backlog, the 
Monitoring Officer advised that it was not simply just about numbers but more 
that there was one particular local council in Dorset where there were 
pressing problems that needed to be resolved quite urgently.

Proposed Cllr Simon Christopher
Seconded Cllr Susan Cocking

Resolved
1. That delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to assess code 
of conduct complaints and the delegation should only be exercised after 
consultation with any three members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
2. That the delegation should remain in place only whilst the Council is 
operating virtual meeting arrangements as part of the response to the Covid-
19 pandemic.

Duration of meeting: 10.00  - 11.12 am

Chairman

Page 10



Audit and Governance Committee
7 July 2020
Performance framework

For Decision
Portfolio Holder:  Cllr P Wharf, Corporate Development and Change

Local Councillor(s):  All  

Executive Director:  Matt Prosser, Chief Executive
 

Report Author: Bridget Downton
Title: Head of Business Insight and Corporate Communications 
Tel: 01929 557268
Email: bridget.downton@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: That Audit and Governance agree the draft performance 
framework in Appendix 1, recognising that there is further work to do to build out 
some of the detail.

Reason for Recommendation: To ensure the council’s progress is measured 
and monitored.

Recommendation: That Audit and Governance agree the performance 
framework be reviewed to incorporate risk reporting in due course.

Reason for Recommendation: To ensure appropriate links between risk and 
performance management.

1. Executive Summary In March 2020, Cabinet considered a proposed 
approach to a performance framework for the Dorset Council Plan. The 
report also provided a summary of a proposed wider performance 
management framework. Cabinet agreed that Audit and Governance 
Committee should consider the draft performance management 
framework and provide any comments on its content. A draft performance 
management framework is attached at Appendix 1.Work has not 
progressed as far as officers would have liked because resources have 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



been diverted in responding to the Covid-19 pandemic. More work is 
needed on the draft framework in two specific areas:
 To develop the detail around service and operational level reporting; 

and
 To integrate risk management and reporting into the performance 

management framework. 

2. Financial Implications: None in relation to this report
  
3. Climate implications: The performance and risk management 

frameworks will include measures monitoring performance in relation to 
the Climate and Ecological Emergency and accompanying Action Plan.

4. Other Implications: None in relation to this report

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

6. Equalities Impact Assessment: Appropriate metrics to report on the 
council’s equalities responsibilities will be included in strategic level 
reporting

7. Appendices: Appendix 1 Dorset Council Performance Framework

8. Background Papers: Cabinet 3 March 2020

9. Summary of proposed approach to performance management  
9.1 The proposed approach to the council’s performance management in 

Appendix 1 has four strands of reporting as follows:

 Strategic level – Strategic reporting involves councillors and senior 
leaders in the council. It provides councillors; senior colleagues; and 
the public with information about the council’s progress against its 
council plan and direction of travel for key services.  

 Service level – Service level reporting is under development. This 
section of the document will be updated as the approach to service 
level reporting is finalised. The directorate leadership teams are 
working with business intelligence and performance business partners 
to define the detailed reporting requirements and mechanisms. The 

Page 12



approach will be tailored to the needs of the individual directorates 
because the reporting requirements will be different them. 

 Operational level – reporting required to successfully oversea and 
manage the individual operations within services.

 Statutory performance (including reporting to external agencies 
& partners) – returns/reporting which need to be returned to central 
government as part of the statutory reporting process - this type of 
information is useful for benchmarking against other authorities 
operating in statistically similar/comparable populations.

9.2 The performance management framework also includes a description of 
the current Covid-19 strategic and service level reporting. This additional 
reporting has been developed to monitor the council’s response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic. These reporting processes will continue for as long 
as required.

9.3 More work is needed on the draft to develop the detail around service and 
operational level reporting and also to integrate risk management and 
reporting into the performance management framework. 

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 9

Strategic Performance Framework

July 2020

Page 15



Contents
Principles of the framework .............................................................................................................................3

Accountability and action tracking................................................................................................................3
Figure 1: Dorset Council Performance Framework – Information Flows & Governance .............................4

Strategic level reporting...................................................................................................................................5
Quarterly reporting on Dorset Council Plan .................................................................................................5
Balanced scorecard strategic reporting on service performance.................................................................5

Service level reporting .....................................................................................................................................6
People – adults and housing monthly performance reporting (under development) ...................................6
People – children’s monthly performance reporting (under development) ..................................................6
Place monthly performance reporting (under development)........................................................................6
Corporate services monthly performance reporting (under development)...................................................6

Covid-19 Reporting..........................................................................................................................................7
Covid-19 strategic level reporting ................................................................................................................7
Covid-19 Service level reporting ..................................................................................................................7

The Future Framework: Business Intelligence ................................................................................................7
Appendix 1: The Performance Pyramid...........................................................................................................8

Figure 2: The Performance Pyramid............................................................................................................8

Dorset Council Performance Framework
July 2020
Dorset Council Performance Framework
July 2020

Page 16



Page 3 of 9

Principles of the framework
Effective performance management relies on close monitoring and assessment of a variety of 
measures from across the council. These range from the highest-level strategic measures – the 
council’s key performance indicators (KPIs), through to the multitude of lower level metrics and 
measures which support individual services and teams.  The framework has four strands of 
reporting: 

 Strategic level – outcomes associated with measuring the successful delivery of the council 
plan and oversight of the council’s overall performance. The strategic reporting consists of:
 Quarterly reporting on progress with the Dorset Council Plan to the Corporate Leadership 

Team (CLT) / Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and the Cabinet.
 Balanced scorecard reporting on service performance: monthly to CLT/ SLT; monthly to 

performance leadership group (executive directors and portfolio holders); and quarterly to 
the Place and Resource Overview Committee and the People and Health Overview 
Committee.

 Quarterly risk management and internal audit updates to Audit and Governance 
Committee. The Committee has an assurance role on this overarching framework and 
will refer any areas of high level concern to the appropriate overview committee.

 Service level – reporting required to make informed service level leadership and 
management decisions. The approach to service level reporting is in development but will 
provide monthly management information in a range of formats determined by the senior 
leadership teams of each of the council’s directorates: People – adults and housing; People 
– children’s; Place; and Corporate development.

 Operational level – reporting required to successfully oversea and manage the individual 
operations within services.

 Statutory performance (including reporting to agencies & partners) – returns/reporting 
which need to be returned to central government as part of the statutory reporting process - 
this type of information is useful for benchmarking against other authorities operating in 
statistically similar/comparable populations.

Figure 1 shows the elements that make up the council’s performance framework. The next 
sections of this document provide more information about strategic and service level reporting. 
Service level reporting and operational level reporting is under development and once that work is 
complete, this document will be updated.

Accountability and action tracking
The framework makes use of a reporting by exception process whereby measures which are 
identified as off-track require detailed explanation from accountable managers. In particular this 
requires:

 an explanation of why a target is being missed/an item is off-track
 an action plan identifying how this will be rectified
 a timeline for returning to within tolerance (path to green)
 an accountable officer
These actions are tracked via a dedicated action tracking process with regular status updates at 
subsequent performance meetings. New actions identified as part of the performance 
management meeting are added into this action tracking process. Appendix 1 provides further 
details of the escalation process and governance underpinning the performance framework.  

Page 17



Page 4 of 9

Figure 1: Dorset Council Performance Framework – Information Flows & Governance

P
age 18



Page 5 of 9

Strategic level reporting 
Strategic reporting involves councillors and senior leaders in the council. It provides councillors; 
senior colleagues; and the public with information about the council’s progress against its 
council plan and direction of travel for key services. 

Quarterly reporting on Dorset Council Plan
Cabinet and SLT receive a quarterly report of progress against the council plan priorities, 
including details of corrective actions where performance is off-track. This sits alongside the 
council’s budget monitoring reporting. Although the reporting is quarterly, the agreed approach 
makes use of measures which are both quarterly and annual where some require longer 
timeframes.  

This reporting is divided into performance outcomes against the 5 identified priorities:

 Economic growth
 Unique environment
 Suitable housing
 Strong, healthy communities
 Staying safe and well
Given its cross-cutting nature, it also includes a section on the council’s commitment to the 
climate and ecological emergency. 

In the first instance this reporting is shared with the senior leadership team during their regular 
monthly performance meeting, the reporting is then provided to Cabinet. The report is also 
shared with residents, all councillors, partners and employees via publication on the council 
website. Council plan performance can be called for scrutiny at any time. 

Balanced scorecard strategic reporting on service performance
Strategic reporting on performance of the council’s services uses the balanced scorecard 
model. This is a strategic-level approach which enables a performance overview of the council’s 
key services. The scorecard contains a balance of both financial and non-financial targeted 
measures and provides a complete picture of performance across the council. The monthly 
balanced scorecard is made up of 4 reporting areas:  

 Operational Metrics (an effective modern organisation) 
 Customer Metrics (a customer focused organisation) 
 HR Metrics (an employer of choice)
 Finance Metrics (a sustainable Organisation)
The balanced scorecard is discussed monthly at CLT / SLT. Each month, following the CLT / 
SLT performance meeting, a monthly performance leadership meeting takes place between 
directorate leaders and councillor portfolio holders to discuss performance and any required 
remedial actions. These actions are tracked to completion via this meeting. Each of the 
council’s overview committees will receive a subset of the balanced scorecard that is relevant to 
their area of responsibility.

Page 19



Page 6 of 9

Service level reporting
Service level reporting is under development. This section of the document will be updated as 
the approach to service level reporting is finalised. The directorate leadership teams are 
working with business intelligence and performance business partners to define the detailed 
reporting requirements and mechanisms. The approach will be tailored to the needs of the 
individual directorates because the reporting requirements will be different for each. This 
section sets out a high level summary of the likely reporting.

People – adults and housing monthly performance reporting (under 
development)
A range of reports are currently produced for adults and housing and this is currently under 
review. These include:

 Monthly activity bulletins providing information on activity and trends relating to clients; 
carers; waiting lists; packages; safeguarding; delayed transfers of care; reablement etc.

 High level indicator reporting
 Client level detailed reports
 Performance dashboards / reports including: domiciliary care; delayed transfer of care; 

community safety; domestic abuse; residential and nursing facilities/placements

People – children’s monthly performance reporting (under development)
A wide range of information has been provided for children’s services historically and this is 
currently under review with the new management team. The intention is to provide 
management information from a range of sources including statutory returns; a range of key 
performance indicators (covering core services such as social care; education; and 
safeguarding); child level data used by Ofsted for inspections; and information about specialist 
services such as fostering; adoption, SEND; and youth offending.

Place monthly performance reporting (under development)
Information is being worked up around the following areas:

 Economic growth and regeneration
 Customer services, libraries and archives
 Planning and building control
 Roads, parking and travel
 Property
 Leisure services, coast, greenspace and harbours
 Regulatory services
 Waste

Corporate services monthly performance reporting (under development)
Information is being worked up around the following areas:

 Commercial and procurement
 Revenue and benefits
 Finance
 HR and organisation development 
 ICT
 Digital, transformation and change
 Business intelligence and communications

Page 20



Page 7 of 9

Covid-19 Reporting
Additional reporting has been developed to monitor the council’s response to the Covid-19 
pandemic. These reporting processes will continue for as long as required. The following 
sections summarise the Covid-19 reporting.

Covid-19 strategic level reporting
A daily report is provided for councillors and the multi-agency group working together to provide 
support to Dorset’s vulnerable people including the shielded community. This provides 
information about the numbers of people we have contacted and what type of support we have 
provide them with. A set of interactive GIS maps are also available showing a range of 
information about the geography of shielded people as well as the location of support services 
available to them. 

A range of information is provided on a weekly basis to CLT / SLT covering:

 Headline updates from public health
 Updates from the duty strategic and tactical emergency response leads
 Covid-19 related children’s services metrics
 School attendance information
 Shielded population analysis and response including volunteering and food distribution
 Covid-19 related adults services & housing metrics 
 Key place based service metrics
 Covid-19 related corporate services metrics
 Covid-19 related place services metrics
 Staff redeployment information
 Legal & democratic services information
 Timeline showing Covid-19 key events

Covid-19 Service level reporting
The following service level covid-19 reports are provided:

 Covid-19 vulnerable children tracker - tracking risk and attendance data from schools for 
vulnerable children.

 Covid-19 children’s risk assessment - children identified as having a lead worker for social 
care or early help and shows whether they have a Covid-19 risk and contingency plan and 
when they were last contacted. Figures from here are reported to the Department for 
Education fortnightly.

 Covid-19 adults and housing report - key covid-19 reporting metrics relating to adult 
services and housing, covering a variety of daily measures and commentary.

The Future Framework: Business Intelligence
The performance framework is formulated to be flexible enough to allow for future 
enhancement and development. In particular the BI & Performance team are exploring options 
to develop the council’s business intelligence capabilities. This will move away from backwards 
looking performance reporting towards predictive analytics and ultimately prescriptive analytics. 
This is currently subject to the formulation of the BI strategy and transformation programme.  

Page 21



Page 8 of 9

Appendix 1: The Performance Pyramid
The Dorset Council framework uses an exceptions-based escalation approach and a set of 
core KPIs for each council service area. Items which are flagging as off-target or as a cause for 
concern are discussed at the relevant performance meeting, then escalated to higher level 
meetings for higher-level decisions as required. This also applies to items which are showing 
exceptionally good results or are flagged as significantly exceeding expectations. This process 
enables the hundreds of metrics and measures which are monitored on a day-to-day basis 
across the many and varied parts of the organisation to be considered and discussed in 
monthly governance forums at different and relevant levels of the organisation. 

The reporting by exception and escalation approach ensures that the most important or 
relevant performance information is used for decision-making during monthly management 
meetings. Figure 2 shows the performance pyramid model used by Dorset Council, and 
illustrates the different types of measures used at the different levels of the organisational 
hierarchy.      

Figure 2: The Performance Pyramid

The base of the performance pyramid is populated with the many hundreds of operational 
measures used on a daily basis to manage specific service activities. This is referred to here as 
low-level operational information.

When taken together these measures provide a picture for managers of how well various parts 
of the service are performing and represent the council’s management information. This then 
informs the next level-up in the pyramid – the service measures. These are the higher-level 
metrics referred to as KPIs which are used to demonstrate how well the service is performing 
against its service objectives. It is from this level upwards that the centralised performance 
approach finds its focus.

The service level KPIs provide a decision-making basis for leaders to assess progress in 
delivering service plans. Where items are deemed as off-track or under-performing, a 

Page 22



Page 9 of 9

combination of operational metrics can provide further information to show which areas of the 
service are moving the KPIs off-track. 

The top of the pyramid is populated with strategic measures. These relate to the overall 
performance of the council as determined by its strategic objectives, desired outcomes and 
council/corporate plan. These high-level metrics allow strategic decision makers and the Senior 
Leadership Team to understand which functions or services within the organisation are moving 
the overall organisation off-track. These measures will also inform strategy and policy at the 
highest level and feed into an assessment of whether the council is meeting its policy objectives 
and outcomes as dictated by the council plan.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee

July 2020 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019-20

For Decision
Portfolio Holder:  Cllr S Flower, Leader of the Council

Executive Director:  Jonathan Mair, Corporate Director, Legal & Democratic 

 
Name: Marc Eyre, Service Manager Assurance; Tel: 01305 224358
Email : m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk

Name: David Trotter, Risk and Resilience Officer; Tel: 01305 228692
Email : m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: 

The Committee is asked to consider and comment on the revised draft Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019-20, which has been amended to reflect 
improvements suggested by members at the previous meeting held on 20 May 2020.

Reason for Recommendation: 

Approval and publication of an Annual Governance Statement by the Council is a 
statutory requirement and provides evidence that Dorset Council maintains high 
standards of governance and addresses significant shortcomings and risks.
  
1. Executive Summary 

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require a body such as 
the Council to “approve an annual governance statement, prepared in 
accordance with proper practices in relation to internal control.”  This statement 
is supported by a Local Code of Corporate Governance together with an extract 
from the Corporate Risk Register highlighting any risks that are identified as 
High.

The initial draft of the AGS was presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 20 May 2020 and members fed back some helpful comments on 
how the documents can be improved.  

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

mailto:m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk
mailto:m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk


The following areas have been enhanced following the helpful discussions and 
subsequent considerations: 

 Key achievements made by Dorset Council during its inaugural year;
 Clear reference made to the revision of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee structures;
 A revised position statement on the performance management framework;
 Statements focussed on value for money;
 Further updated text on the Covid-19 response, including the Resources 

Scrutiny Committee consideration; 
 Improved reference to the Local Code of Corporate Governance, which 

contains more detailed insight into the workings of the governance 
environment.

The corporate risk register extract is also now included at Appendix B.  The 
committee made helpful observations and judgements on the format of the risk 
reporting which have been taken forward.  Whilst these have not been reflected 
yet within the current appendix, they will be incorporated in advance of the 
finalisation of the AGS and for future risk management updates to this 
committee.  Improvements will include:

 Inclusion of relevant performance measures for corporate risks providing a 
clear link between performance and risk;

 Clearer acknowledgement of changes made on individual risks since the 
previous reporting;

 The ability for the Committee to invite Risk Owners and Accountable 
Officers to the panel where there are specific detailed questions on risks.

It should be noted that final statement will be signed by the Council Leader and 
Chief Executive.  As the AGS must reflect any significant issues that arise prior 
to its final approval, if necessary, subsequent amendments will be made to the 
draft document to reflect them and reported to this Committee.

2. Financial Implications

There are no budget requirements arising directly from this report. The overall 
financial position of the Council is one of the significant issues covered in the 
AGS. Addressing other issues identified in the compliance assessment or the 
AGS may have budgetary implications, which will be considered in the relevant 
action plans.

  
3. Climate implications

There are no climate requirements arising directly from this report.

4. Other Implications

The “Review of Effectiveness” within the draft AGS explains the significant 
governance issues facing the Council.

Page 26



5. Risk Assessment

The AGS references risks on the Council’s corporate risk register which have 
been assessed as being HIGH.

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

Considering equalities issues is a key aspect of good governance, but there 
are no equalities issues arising directly from this report.

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Local Code of Corporate Governance
Appendix B – Summary of High Corporate - Service Risks

8. Background Papers

Report to Audit and Governance Committee May 2020

Evidence to inform the governance compliance assessment and then to 
complete the AGS has been provided by senior officers across the 
organisation. It includes policies and procedures of the Council, the 
Constitution, and reports and minutes of Committees - CIPFA / SOLACE 
publication: Delivering good governance in local government – framework. 

Page 27

https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=156&MId=4602&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Annual Governance Statement
2019-2020

Good Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing 
the right things, in the right way and for the benefit of the residents 

it serves. 

PLEASE NOTE THAT MUCH OF THE DETAIL ON HOW YOUR 
COUNCIL OPERATES CAN BE FOUND IN THE LOCAL CODE OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE THAT SUPPORTS THIS STATEMENT

Supported by:
Appendix A – Local Code of Corporate Governance

Appendix B – Summary of High Corporate - Service Risks

Page 29



2

Contents
Ref Description Page 

1 Introduction and Acknowledgement of Responsibility 3

2 The Principles of Good Governance 3

3 Key Elements of the Council’s Governance Framework 3

4 Overview of the Councils Governance framework 4

5 Leadership 4

6 Our Behaviours 8

7 Review of Key Achievements 2019-2020 10

8 Review of Effectiveness 11

9 Assurance Statement 12

10 What actions have been taken in response to 2018-19 Annual 
Governance Statement

12

11 How can we IMPROVE? 13

12 Approval of the Annual Governance Statement 2020-21 14

Please note that this DRAFT document was considered previously by the 
committee and subsequently several suggestions had been made on the 
format, layout and content. Therefore, all latest amendments made are 
highlighted in RED in this document and in YELLOW within the local code at 
Appendix B. 

Any further amendments should be forwarded to the Risk and Resilience 
Officer by no later than Friday, 24 July 2020 to d.trotter@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 

Thank you 

Page 30

mailto:d.trotter@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk


3

1. Introduction and Acknowledgement of Responsibility

Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct 
a review, at least once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and 
include an Annual Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement 
of Accounts. It should be noted that this document is the inaugural Annual 
Governance Statement for Dorset Council, following its inception on 1 April 2019.

2. The Principles of Good Governance

The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance publication (2016) defines the various 
principles of good governance in the public sector. The document sets out seven core 
principles that underpin the governance framework and these are set out opposite. 

3. Key Elements of the Council’s Governance Framework

Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has 
a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to decide to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions. The Governance Framework is comprised of the systems and 
processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is directed, and its activities 
through which it is accountable to, engages with and leads the community. The system 
of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims 
and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. 

The process of review and monitoring of governance arrangements across Dorset 
Council is an ongoing process with updates provided throughout the year to 
stakeholders.  The outputs from this process have also been a primary source of 
information for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This 
Statement explains how the Council has complied with The Code and meets the 
requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 regulation 6, in 
relation to conducting a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control 
and the publication of an annual governance statement. 

Page 31



4

4. Overview of Dorset Councils Governance framework

The sections below provide an overview of the Councils key governance 
arrangements. 

A more extensive schedule is contained within the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance, which accompanies this statement at Appendix A.

Council, Cabinet and Leader
Provide leadership, approve the budget, 
develop and set policy
Approve the constitution which sets out 
how the council operates
Agree Council Plan priorities, developed in 
consultation with residents and 
stakeholders

Decision making
All decisions made in compliance with law 
and council constitution
All committee meetings are held in public, 
other than for exempt business
Decisions are recorded on the council 
website

Scrutiny and review
Overview & Scrutiny committees review 
council policy and can challenge decisions. 
The Audit & Governance Committee 
reviews governance and promotes and 
maintains high standards of conduct by 
councillors

Risk Management
A risk management policy and strategy set 
out a clear approach to management of risks
Risk registers identify strategic, operational 
and project risks

5. Leadership 

Senior Leadership Team - Head of Paid Service is the Chief Executive and is responsible 
for all council employees and leading an effective county organisation. Executive 
Director for Corporate Development is the council’s Section 151 officer and is 
responsible for safeguarding the council’s financial position and ensuring value for 
money. The Corporate Director (Legal & Democratic Services Monitoring Officer) who 
is responsible for ensuring legality and promoting high standards of conduct in public 
life. The council’s constitution is updated throughout the year and sets out how the 
council operates. It states what matters are reserved for decision by the whole council, 
the responsibilities of the cabinet and the matters reserved for collective and 
individual decision, and the powers delegated to panels, committees and partners. 
Decision making powers not reserved for councillors are delegated to chief officers 
and heads of service. Elected members scrutinise decisions made by the Cabinet, and 
those delegated to officers, and review services provided by the council and its 
partners. 

Page 32



5

The Councils committee structure as set out in the constitution was reviewed by full 
Council on 18 February 2020 and replaced the four overview and scrutiny committees 
with two overview committees and two scrutiny committees.    The council’s overall 
policy is represented through the council plan which was formally adopted by full 
Council on 18 February 2020.  The plan developed alongside the budget through 
consultation with residents and other stakeholders in the county, and which sets out 
how Dorset Council priorities will be delivered.  We understand that effective 
performance management relies on close monitoring and assessment of a variety of 
measures from across the council. These range from the highest-level strategic 
measures – the council’s key performance indicators (KPIs), through to the multitude 
of lower level metrics and measures which support individual services and teams.  

Strategic level outcomes associated with measuring the successful delivery of the 
council plan and oversight of the council’s overall performance. The strategic 
reporting consists of:

 Quarterly reporting on progress with the Dorset Council Plan to the Corporate 
Leadership Team (CLT) / Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and the Cabinet. 

 Balanced scorecard reporting on service performance: monthly to CLT/ SLT; 
monthly to performance leadership group (executive directors and portfolio 
holders); and quarterly to the Place and Resource Overview Committee and 
the People and Health Overview Committee.

 Quarterly risk management and internal audit updates to Audit and 
Governance Committee. The Committee has an assurance role on this 
overarching framework and will refer any areas of high-level concern to the 
appropriate overview committee.

Service level reporting required to make informed service level leadership and 
management decisions. The approach to service level reporting is in development but 
will provide monthly management information in a range of formats determined by 
the senior leadership teams of each of the council’s directorates: People – adults and 
housing; People – children’s; Place; and Corporate development. 

Operational level reporting required to successfully oversea and manage the 
individual operations within services.

Statutory performance (including reporting to agencies & partners) – 
returns/reporting which need to be returned to central government as part of the 
statutory reporting process - this type of information is useful for benchmarking 
against other authorities operating in statistically similar/comparable populations. The 
framework makes use of a reporting by exception process whereby measures which are 
identified as off-track require detailed explanation from accountable managers. This will 
require:

 an explanation of why a target is being missed/an item is off-track 
 an action plan identifying how this will be rectified 
 a timeline for returning to within tolerance (path to green) 
 an accountable officer

Page 33



6

These actions are tracked through a dedicated action tracking process with regular 
status updates at subsequent performance meetings. New actions will be identified 
as part of the performance management meeting and added into the tracking process. 

The council has a whistleblowing policy, which encourages employees and other 
concerned parties to report any instances of suspected unlawful conduct, financial 
malpractice, or actions that are dangerous to the public or environment. The council 
expects the highest standards of conduct and personal behaviour from councillors and 
employees. These standards are defined and communicated through codes of 
conduct, protocols and other documents. 

The council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government” (2010) as set out in the “Application Note to Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework”. The Chief Financial Officer (performed 
by the Executive Director for Corporate Services) has statutory responsibility for the 
proper management of the council’s finances and is a key member of the leadership 
team. The council’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in 
Public Service Organisations” (2010). 

When risks are identified, an agreement takes place on how they will be managed and 
mitigated and keep the council’s risk profile under review and satisfied that 
management’s systems include appropriate controls, and that it has adequate sources 
of assurance. It is acknowledged that with such systems in place it will not eliminate 
all risks, but having systems, mitigations and controls will help to provide a robust 
process that considers any such risks. The council has appropriate arrangements in 
place to deal with fraud and corruption risks and is committed to maintaining its 
vigilance to tackle fraud. The council’s legal services and procurement teams ensure 
that all are fit for purpose and the council’s interests are protected. 

One of the founding principles of the formation of Dorset Council from the six 
predecessor councils was to provide greater value for money for the local taxpayer. 
The activity to converge services has generated savings of over £10M in the first year, 
and there are further efficiencies are programmes to be achieved through bringing 
staff, systems, properties and other assets together.

Page 34



7

The Council assures itself of value for money by routine benchmarking of services with 
other similar local authorities, looking at the costs, service outcomes and deliverables 
against the Dorset Plan. The system of performance monitoring against key 
performance indicators will continue to be refined throughout 2020-21. As part of 
their work External Audit review and report on the Council’s financial statements 
(including the Annual Governance Statement) and provide an opinion on the accounts 
and use of resources including providing a value for money opinion.

During 2020 Dorset Council has had a significant role in responding to the Covid-19 
outbreak, as a Category One responder under the Civil Contingencies Act.  This has 
resulted in some temporary changes to governance arrangements, including 
postponement of some Committee meetings, and prioritisation of service delivery to 
cope with changing demand.  Dorset Council is working with NHS partners to take all 
the necessary steps to contain and delay the virus and to ensure we are well prepared 
for any potential spread. The council shared messages with the workforce and 
residents as to how they can help minimise the spread of germs and the coronavirus 
in Dorset. 

What is Dorset Council doing to minimise risk?

It is important to note that NHS services and Public Health are well prepared for 
outbreaks of infectious diseases such as COVID-19. Dorset Council is also well 
prepared. 

An internal Incident Management Team (IMT) has been established and includes 
representatives from across Dorset Council. This IMT is set up to meet weekly and 
feeds into the weekly local resilience forum’s Strategic Coordinating Group (SCG). The 
council are making sure that business continuity plans are up to date and ready to 
activate should we need them. Business continuity planning includes enabling 
employees to work flexibly. 

The Emergency Response Plan and its supporting Command and Control structure was 
subject to scrutiny by the Resources Scrutiny Committee on 2 June 2020 and were 
assured of the effectiveness of response.

Page 35



8

6. Our behaviours

There are four behaviours we expect every employee to demonstrate, regardless of 
who they are and what they do for the council. In how we work and communicate, 
whether internally or externally, we should be leading by example to encourage and 
inspire each other through these behaviours. By embodying these behaviours, we can 
work collaboratively together as One Team. The examples given against each 
behaviour describe the type of things that individuals might demonstrate. This 
framework has been designed to aid discussions across Dorset Council, to help us work 
towards a positive workplace culture. 

Responsibility We act with integrity. We are honest and we don't attribute blame 
when something goes wrong. We are all part of the solution.

When responsibility is being demonstrated We…
 give constructive feedback and seek out feedback on our own performance 

and behaviours
 deliver what we promise
 are open and transparent
 learn from mistakes
 take ownership
 standby and support difficult decisions

 
When responsibility is not being demonstrated We…

 blame others
 defer decision making without a good reason
 don't respect other people's work or deadlines
 avoid difficult conversations with colleagues, partners or customers

Page 36



9

Respect We are aware of our impact on others. We treat people fairly and have high 
expectations of ourselves and others, and value differences in approaches and 

opinions. We instigate and lead through positive behaviour.

When respect is being demonstrated We…
 are welcoming and friendly
 adapt our approach to help build good working relationships
 recognise and value the differences between people, placing a positive value 

on those differences
 manage our reactions professionally and calmly
 keep promises
 demonstrate empathy and recognise alternative perspectives

 
When respect is not being demonstrated We…

 treat people differently based on their role / position
 are insensitive or unhelpful
 exclude people
 instigate or take part in gossip
 make excuses for poor behaviour or protect others' poor behaviour
 work on other tasks during meetings, instead of being responsive and 

contributing to the discussion
 

Recognition We appreciate and value the contribution of individuals and teams for 
work well done.  We lead by taking time to provide feedback and share lessons 

learned and achievements to support the organisation's development. We celebrate 
commitment and success.

When recognition is being demonstrated We…
 give positive feedback
 acknowledge good behaviour and respectfully challenge poor behaviour
 value every contribution in success
 create a positive team spirit

 
When recognition is not being demonstrated We…

 take credit for another people's work
 instigate or encourage a blame culture
 undermine or act negatively when someone receives recognition
 use recognition for self-promotion

 

Page 37



10

One Team: Collaboration We work with colleagues, residents and partners to 
achieve the best possible outcomes. We feel confident to share ideas, we listen and 
respect other points of view and set this example to each other. We value the power 

in combining our personal qualities, skills and experience to achieve a shared goal.

When collaboration is being demonstrated We…
 spend time building positive relationships
 are flexible in our attitude and approach
 share information and expertise without being asked to
 invite and support others to try new possibilities
 work through conflict to create conditions for successful working
 work to find the simplest way to do things
 work together, not in competition

When collaboration is not being demonstrated We…
 don't share information or are reluctant to contribute
 don't value or respect contributions from others
 avoid working across departments or teams
 are not flexible in our attitude and approach
 take credit for another people's work

 7. Key Achievements during 2019-20
During its inaugural year, the Council carried out significant transformation and 
restructuring as it began to harmonise the services inherited from the predecessor 
Councils.  These achievements included:

 Ensuring Dorset Council was safe and legal for day one

 Holding its first elections in May 2019

 Savings of £10m per annum following restructuring and convergence of 
corporate services

 Children’s services successfully implementing its blueprint for Change 

 The council transforming service delivery within its Planning service

 Successfully launching behaviours, OD strategy and internal communications 
strategy 

 Managing the general election in December 2019

 Responded to several critical incidents resulting from the storms in February 
and March 2020 and the Covid 19 crisis.

Page 38



11

In celebration of its first year, Dorset Council asked staff to let the senior management 
team to know what they were particularly proud of during the first year of business, 
and there were many responses. These thoughts and feelings can be found HERE 

8. Review of Effectiveness

The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for, and used economically and efficiently. It must ensure it has 
arrangements for the proper governance of its affairs the effective exercise of its 
functions. The governance framework comprises the rules, procedures, systems and 
processes by which the Council is controlled. 

The quality of governance arrangements underpins the levels of trust in public services 
and is fundamental to the Council’s statutory and democratic obligations. A 
framework of good governance allows the Council to be clear about how it discharges 
its responsibilities and to show this for members, partners, stakeholders and 
residents. As mentioned above the council has responsibility for conducting, at least 
annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 
system of internal control. The system of internal control is a significant part of the 
framework and is designed to ensure risks are managed within the council’s appetite. 
We cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

Page 39

https://intranet.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/news/happy-birthday-dorset-council-what-have-we-done-to-feel-proud/


12

The effectiveness of the framework is monitored and assured through routine 
performance monitoring and by internal and external audit. The key elements of the 
review of effectiveness are: 

 The council’s internal management processes, such as performance monitoring 
and reporting; the employees performance appraisal framework; internal surveys 
of awareness of corporate policies; monitoring of policies, such as the corporate 
complaints and health and safety policies; and the corporate budget challenge 
process

 The Local Code of Corporate Governance Self-Assessment, confirming that the 
Code of Conduct, Financial Regulations and other corporate governance processes 
have operated as intended within services throughout the year

 Corporate, Service and Project Risk Registers which identify significant exposures 
together with action plans intended to bring the level of risk down to an acceptable 
level. The work of the audit and governance committee which includes 
responsibility for monitoring the development and operation of corporate 
governance in the council

 Quarterly Audit Improvement monitoring reports, Annual Internal Audit Reports 
and External Audit (ISA260), reviews by external inspection regimes (such as 
Ofsted and optional peer challenges).

9. Assurance Statement

Having reviewed the council arrangements the work, as detailed above, provides good 
overall assurance of the council’s system of internal control and that the 
arrangements are fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. 

10. What actions have been taken in response to 2018-19 Annual 
Governance Statement

As Dorset Council is a new unitary authority, it did not produce an Annual Governance 
Statement for 2018-19, however the predecessor Councils were required to do so.  
Commitments made within these were:

 We will continue to ensure that any significant risks identified by Dorset Council 
are recognised and responded to by the Leadership Team and Elected 
Councillors.  RESPONSE – A new Dorset Council risk register has been developed, 
including service level risks.  This process is still maturing and therefore remains 
an action within the 2019-20 statement.

 We aim to be better at aligning our finances to the Council Plan and performance 
framework. RESPONSE - A new Dorset Council Plan has been approved.

Page 40



13

11. How can we IMPROVE?

Specific opportunities for improvement in governance and internal controls identified 
as part of the assurance processes have been addressed or are included in action plans 
for the relevant managers.  Focus will be placed on the following issues during 2020-
21 as we continue the journey following the transition into Dorset Council. 

A 
- B

eh
av

in
g 

w
ith

 in
te

gr
ity

, d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
st

ro
ng

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
et

hi
ca

l v
al

ue
s a

nd
 

re
sp

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
ru

le
 o

f t
he

 la
w

The mandatory e-learning module for General Data Protection 
Regulations needs to be further promoted and completion rates 
monitored.  

 Action – Service manager for Assurance

Work is underway to ensure that there is greater visibility and 
promotion of whistleblowing arrangements.  

 Action – Service Manager for Assurance. 

The Council is establishing a policy and supporting training 
framework for Corporate Criminal Offence.

 Action – Service Manager for (Finance) Policy and 
Compliance. 

F 
- M

an
ag

in
g 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
ro

bu
st

 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 st

ro
ng

 p
ub

lic
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

Improve maturity of the Dorset Council risk management 
arrangements, including reporting to officers and members and 
improved links with the performance management framework.  

 Action - Service Manager for Assurance

Undertake a debrief/lessons learnt process in respect of the 
Council’s response to Covid-19 and build this into future 
emergency planning arrangements, in conjunction with the Local 
Resilience Forum.  

 Action – Service Manager for Assurance.

G 
- I

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

, 
re

po
rt

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
ud

it 
to

 
de

liv
er

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y

Monitoring of the Peer Review implementation plan.  

 Action – Service Manager for Business Intelligence and 
Performance 

Page 41



14

12. Approval of the Annual Governance Statement 2019-20

The council is satisfied that this statement provides a substantial level of assurance 
that good governance is in place in Dorset Council and that appropriate arrangements 
are in place to address improvements in our review of compliance. 

Progress on these improvements and on addressing any mitigating the risks will be 
monitored through the year by senior officers and elected councillors of Dorset 
Council. 

Matt Prosser
Chief Executive, Dorset Council 

Councillor Spencer Flower
Leader of Dorset Council

Supported by:
Appendix A – Local Code of Corporate Governance

Appendix B – Summary of High Corporate - Service Risks

Page 42



Pa
ge

1

APPENDIX A

Introduction - Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that 
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the 
Council to conduct a review, at least once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include an Annual Governance Statement reporting 
on the review with the Statement of Accounts.

Good Governance in the Public Sector - In 2014, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) collaborated to produce The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector. The diagram (table 1) illustrates the core 
principles of good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other: Principles A and B permeates implementation of principles C to G. It 
illustrates that good governance is dynamic, and that an entity should be committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a process of 
positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders. The Framework sets the standard for local authority governance in the UK. The purpose of the 
Framework is to assist authorities individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique approach, with the overall aim to ensure that:

 Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities

 There is sound and inclusive decision making

 There is clear accountability for the use of those resources to achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities

Our Approach to Corporate Governance - In Dorset, good governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way and for 
the benefit of the residents it serves. Good governance will invariably lead to high standards of management, strong performance, the effective use of resources 
and good outcomes which in turn will lead to increased trust. Good governance flows from having shared values and culture. It requires having in place a 
framework of overarching strategic policies and objectives underpinned by robust systems, processes and structures for delivering these. We recognise that 
the delivery of our strategic policies and objectives cannot be done in isolation.  We need to engage with other statutory bodies and the voluntary and 
community sector as well as private companies commissioned to deliver services. As such Dorset Council has an interest in ensuring that these partners have 
in place good governance arrangements.

P
age 43



Pa
ge

2

Table 1 - Dorset Council is committed to the seven core principles of 
good practice contained in the CIPFA framework and will test its 
governance arrangements against this framework and report annually. 
To confirm this, we test our governance arrangements by:

Developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, 
including arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness. Our Local 
Code has been written to reflect the Council’s own structure, functions, 
and the governance arrangements in existence.  It’s comprised of the 
policies, procedures, behaviours, actions and values by which the 
Council is controlled and governed.

Reviewing existing governance arrangements. The Council will monitor 
its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in practice and will 
review them on a continuing basis to ensure that they are up to date. 

This review will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the 
processes contained within the Local Code. This includes annual 
assessments such as:

 Departments’ and corporate reviews of assurance arrangements - Internal Audit Annual Report including an opinion on the risk, governance and control 
environment and framework 

 The opinions of other review agencies and inspectorates, including governance issues via ad hoc cases / disciplinary issues, police investigations

Reporting publicly on compliance with our own code on an annual basis and on how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements 
in the year and on planned changes. Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to conduct a review at least once 
in a year of the effectiveness of our systems of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review with our published statement of Accounts. 
his is known as the Annual Governance Statement. The Chief Executive and Leader of the Council certify the Annual Governance Statement to accompany 
the Annual Accounts which will: 

o assess how the Council has complied with our Local Code and provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s governance 
arrangements 

o provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of governance will be achieved. 

P
age 44



Pa
ge

3

Dorset Council’s Local Code is based on the following principles which we are always working towards with the overall aim 
of ‘Achieving the intended outcomes while acting in the public interest

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
A. 
Behaving with integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values and respecting the 
rule of the law

Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values

Respecting the rule of 
law

Demonstrating and communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through 
appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 
effectively. Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for 
decision making and other actions.

Dorset Council’s Constitution contains Codes of Conduct for both Councillors and Officers to ensure that high 
standards of conduct are maintained.  The Constitution was reviewed in this financial year and approved by Full 
Council at its meeting on 18 February 2020.  This included a revision of the committee framework, separating 
out overview and scrutiny functions.

Registers of Members’ interests and records of gifts and hospitality are published on the Council’s website. 
Members’ Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal Interests that might lead to bias are 
recorded in minutes of meetings which are available on the Council’s website.  The Members’ Register of 
Interests including gifts and hospitality is made available for public inspection and published on the Council’s 
website. 

Dorset Council support and promotes the maintenance of high standards of conduct by Members and has 
agreed criteria for assessing complaints against Members, which is published on the Council’s website. 

The Employee’s (Officer’s) Code of Conduct sets out standards of behaviour and conduct that the Council 
expects of its employees. This includes confidentiality, data protection (which is subject to mandatory annual 
training via e-learning), freedom of information, and fraud prevention. An employee policy is in place for 
acceptance of gifts and hospitality. The Monitoring Officer reviews the registers of interests and gifts and 
hospitality on an annual basis. 

An Information Governance Board has been established, chaired by the Senior Information Risk Officer.

Regular items appear on the Council’s intranet reminding all employees of the Register of Interests, Register of 
Gifts and Hospitality and the Whistleblowing Procedure and arrangements are in place to enable employees to 
raise issues of concern and report any wrongdoing.  

P
age 45



Pa
ge

4

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
A formal complaints policy which is publicly accessible is in place and an annual report on complaints is produced 
for all areas and is published. The Council has in place an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy 
and has also implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risks of bribery and corruption and money-
laundering to conform with requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice – ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption’ (2014) which are publicised across the organisation.  

Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values. 
Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in 
compliance with ethical standards expected by the organisation.

The Member Code of Conduct includes Principles and rules of behaviour which cover, Integrity; Selflessness; 
Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Honesty and Leadership. Members, in signing the Code, agree to comply 
with these principles. Employees Code of Conduct and Part 5B of the Constitution refers to the key principles in 
public life and standards. The promotion of high standards of conduct is one of the key areas of responsibility for 
the Audit and Governance Committee. 

When procuring goods or services, the Council uses a selection questionnaire which includes questions on a 
potential supplier’s ethical behaviour. 

Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other 
stakeholders. Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively. Ensuring corruption and misuse 
of power are dealt with effectively. The Council is establishing a policy and supporting training framework for 
Corporate Criminal Offence - Responsible Officer – Service Manager for (Finance) Policy and Compliance. 

The Council’s Political Structure and Roles are available on the Council’s website and includes membership details 
and functions of all major committees as well as roles and responsibilities of Cabinet and other members. 
Appropriate Officers monitor reports to ensure propriety of decision making and that legal advice is included 
where necessary and appropriate. All members and Chief Officers are required to complete the ‘Related Party 
Disclosure Form’. The Council maintains records of legal advice provided by officers to ensure it respects the rule 
of law.

P
age 46



Pa
ge

5

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
B. 
Ensuring openness and 
comprehensive 
stakeholder engagement

Openness

Engaging 
comprehensively with 
institutional stakeholders

Engaging with individual 
citizens and service users 
effectively

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation's 
commitment to openness. Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs 
and outcomes.  The presumption is for openness.  If that is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping 
a decision confidential should be provided. 

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective 
interventions/courses of action.

Adoption of a clear and consistent reporting format in relation to committee reports. Agendas, reports (and 
minutes) are also published on the council’s website in advance. Meetings are open to the public except in relation 
to exempt items. 

A ‘forward plan’ of items is in place and dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports are set and 
adhered to. Records of decisions and supporting materials are available which can be found on the Council’s 
website. 

Regular meetings are held with relevant Lead Members to brief them on developments in their service area and 
of issues of concern. Reports showing progress against the Council Plan is published and scrutinised. 

The induction and member development programme were designed to ensure that members were equipped with 
the relevant knowledge and skills they require to perform their role to the benefit of the council and local 
communities. 

Reports to and decisions taken by the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Bodies and Regulatory Board are available on the 
Council’s website. The Council uses social media to reach a growing number of residents and stakeholders. It also 
publishes a council magazine and has an active website. Freedom of Information practices are in place to publish 
responses to requests. Important data is published in accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code 
(2015), as are our performance reports and findings. Local Government Transparency Code 2015 is issued to meet 
the Government’s desire to place more power into citizens’ hands to increase democratic accountability and make 
it easier for local people to contribute to the local decision-making process and help shape public services. 

P
age 47



Pa
ge

6

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
Transparency is the foundation of local accountability and the key that gives people the tools and information they 
need to enable them to play a bigger role in society. The availability of data can also open new markets for local 
business, the voluntary and community sectors and social enterprises to run services or manage public assets. 
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 
communities, individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision 
is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes in: 

 Ensuring that communication methods are effective, and that members and officers are clear about their 
roles about community engagement. Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences 
of communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds, including reference to 
future needs.

 Implementing effective feedback mechanisms to demonstrate how views have been considered. 
Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure 
inclusivity.

 Taking account of the impact of decisions on future generations of taxpayers and service users.
 There was a significant level of engagement, consultation and preparation formulating the induction and 

training plan for the elected members of Dorset Council (DC) due to the volume of information needing to 
be communicated.  The induction was then devised from this feedback and from conversations with a 
large range of officers.  Approval for the plan was sought from both officers and outgoing councillors.  
Internal audit of the induction plan provided a “substantial” assurance that the council has robust 
arrangements in place for the induction and training of elected Members

A variety of arrangements are in place to engage with and involve other stakeholders including the business sector, 
health agencies, the Police, town & parish councils, rural communities and the voluntary and community sector. 
Engaging with customers before planning and commissioning services is encouraged by the Council’s 
Communications team. Regular media and web monitoring are in place to pick up informal feedback. The Council 
has adopted a clear framework for residents, service users and employees about public consultations. We have in 
house expertise in communication, engagement, research and survey design, equalities issues and legal issues, 
provides support and guidance and co-ordinates resources to ensure robust public consultations.

Results of major consultations are published in bespoke reports, which are available HERE

P
age 48

https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/your-council/consultations/find-a-consultation.aspx


Pa
ge

7

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
C. Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental benefits

Defining outcomes Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation's purpose and intended outcomes 
containing appropriate performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation's overall strategy, 
planning and other decisions; Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens 
and service users.  Managing service users' expectations effectively about determining priorities and making the 
best use of the resources available.

The Council’s overall vision is reflected in the Council Plan. We also have in place the Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy. The Council communicates with and takes account of feedback to review outcomes, so they reflect 
progress and wider changes. A variety of engagement, consultation and communication channels are in place to 
ensure that service users are aware of the financial and policy context and to help manage expectations. 
Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 
various economic, social and environmental benefits through consultation where possible, to ensure appropriate 
trade-offs. Ensuring fair access to services. Our transformation programme includes management of our property 
and assets as a key theme. The Plan provides the long - term strategy within which the Council manages and 
maintains its transport network.   

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
D. 
Determining the 
interventions necessary 
to optimise the 
achievement of the 
intended outcomes

Determining 
interventions

Planning interventions

Optimising achievement 
of intended outcomes

Ensuring the medium-term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and other 
resource constraints. Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, considering the full cost of operations over 
the medium and longer term. Ensuring the achievement of 'social value' through service planning and 
commissioning. Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options, indicating 
how intended outcomes would be achieved and associated risks.  Therefore, ensuring best value is achieved 
however services are provided. Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover 
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets.  Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 
determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered:

 Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working collaboratively, including shared risks. 
Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering goods and services 
can be adapted to changing circumstances.

 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process to identify how 
the performance of services and projects is to be measured. Ensuring capacity exists to generate the 
information required to review service quality regularly. 

 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium-term financial plan. Inform 
medium and long-term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.

P
age 49



Pa
ge

8

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
A Strategic Commissioning and contracting approach is being embedded into the organisation including 
commissioning strategies and a clear commissioning cycle involving service review, evidence and consultation.  
Using business intelligence, the need to align our priorities and goals with future outcomes and financial targets. 
Work is in progress to develop targets that are:

 allocated appropriately across directorates, teams and individuals; 
 based on robust data analysis that takes into consideration more than just previous performance; 
 reviewed and monitored on a regular basis; 

There is recognition that over a period, poor quality target setting may adversely affect the performance of 
individuals and the organisation. There are feedback and complaints mechanisms/reports in place to allow quality 
issues to be identified.  The Council’s performance management is undergoing review and transformation. The 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules requires that when procuring a service due regard is paid as to how the 
contract will improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of Dorset as required by the Public 
Service (Social Value) Act 2012. Achievement of social value is monitored regularly.

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
E. 
Developing the entity’s 
capacity, including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 
capacity

Developing the capability 
of the entity’s leadership 
and other individuals

Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness. 
Recognizing the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved. 
Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources. 

The Council’s People Strategy and Delivery Plan is in place. As with all the goals, there are commitments we are 
all making to ensure we achieve them. Some of the commitments for engaging our people are:

 facilitate meaningful ‘big conversations’ through our employee forum, which is open to all employees
 establish a leadership forum, to bring together our people leaders on a regular basis
 undertake regular, valuable, two-way engagement, through a range of internal communications 

channel

Success - We’re already doing lots of things to engage with employees, and more is planned - the Employee 
Forum has been going strong since November 2018, it’s a great way for us to gain your feedback and get 
employees collaborating on different pieces of work

P
age 50



Pa
ge

9

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
 we have started running our Leadership Forum, bringing together our people leaders to cover a range 

of different topics
 the introduction of Hive as a staff survey tool- The first survey of Hive has been launched. You can find 

out more about Hive here. 

We recognise that the more employees can see on how their feedback is used positively, the more engaged 
they will be – leading us to be more motivated and more productive.

The Council provides learning and development opportunities to elected councillors in accordance with its agreed 
Member Learning and Development Strategy. Compulsory training is provided to relevant members on Planning 
and Regulatory Matters and on Pensions. Regular briefings are provided to members on the key issues and 
challenges facing the Council. Council Learning and Development plans are informed by the MTFS; Strategic 
Vision; Departmental key aims; service plans.

Induction training is provided for all new employees appropriate to their role and responsibilities, with access to 
on-going Learning and Development activities to enhance skills. The Council encourages and supports a diverse 
workforce and variety of workplace support groups, such that it has been recognised as a sector leader by 
Stonewall. The Council’s Equalities Board actively monitors and supports a diverse workforce and recruitment 
processes have been strengthened to ensure fair representation of different groups. In addition, the Council goes 
about:

 Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge and resources and support to fulfil 
their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they can update their knowledge on a continuing basis.

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation. Taking steps to consider the 
leadership's own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are responsive to constructive feedback from peer 
review and inspections.

 Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support 
individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

 Members have received the same information about behavioural standards and the “One Team” initiative 
as officers. 

 Mentoring is taking place within political groups and additional mentoring is available for councillors with 
specific portfolios or roles.  

P
age 51

https://intranet.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/news/coming-soon-a-new-way-to-have-your-say/
https://intranet.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/news/coming-soon-a-new-way-to-have-your-say/


Pa
ge

10

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
 We have a written Member and Officer protocol in the Constitution that sets out the formal basis of 

member-officer relationships. 
 Opportunities for all members (including non-executive) to inform/influence decision-making and policy 

development - The constitution sets out the opportunities for Members to formally participate in the 
democratic process. 

Our commitment to good governance will continue to demonstrate our Code of Corporate Governance that sets 
out the standards that Dorset Council will meet to ensure it is doing the right things in the right way for the right 
people in an inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. As highlighted the Code of Corporate Governance 
is a long and complex document but the commitments described in it can be broadly summarised by the ten 
commitments to good governance set out below. 

1. We will clearly set out our objectives and what we’re trying to achieve. 

2. We will measure how effective our services are and take action to improve them. We will publish information 
showing how we are progressing towards our objectives. 

3. We will work with other public services, such as the Police and NHS, to improve services for Dorset residents. 

4. We will ensure we make the best use of taxpayers’ money by taking prudent financial decisions and 
measuring the level of value for money we achieve. 

5. We will set out in our Constitution who can take which decisions. 

6. We will behave in ways that reflect our values and high standards of conduct. 

7. We will ensure people in the Council making decisions have access to accurate information to help them 
take decisions in the best interests of Dorset. 

8. We will record and publish the decisions we take and the reasons for them. Wherever possible, we’ll take 
the most important decisions in public. 

9. We will carry out scrutiny of our services to make sure they meet our residents’ needs. 

10.  We will be sensitive about how we collect and record information and safeguard it from misuse.

P
age 52



Pa
ge

11

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
F. 
Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management

Managing risk

Managing performance

Robust internal control

Managing data

Strong public financial 
management

Dorset Council continues to develop its risk aware culture and seek to implement indicators that help to identify, 
assess and report risks. Risks constantly change, so it is necessary to monitor and regularly report on the progress 
being made in managing risks and opportunities in line with the council plan and directorate service objectives.  
We recognise the importance that risk registers are kept up to date with accurate and robust analysis which 
enables meaningful review and focus will be to:

 Implement a robust and integrated risk management process
 Monitor and review that the process works effectively
 Responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated

As Dorset Council is within its infancy, the risk register framework is still maturing.  Risks have been identified at both 
a corporate and service level and are reported on a quarterly basis to Audit and Governance Committee. A business 
continuity framework has been developed, and a review undertaken during 2020 to ensure effective for critical 
services.  These have also been subject to an external challenge by risk consultants as part of a risk support facility 
contained within the insurance contract.  Several exercises were undertaken during 2019 to ensure that they are fit 
for purpose.  The Command and Control structure has been effective to-date throughout the Covid-19 response, 
but the opportunity will be taken to debrief and understand lessons learnt, at both an authority and multi-agency 
(Local Resilience Forum) perspective and to update emergency response plans accordingly. 

Strategic level outcomes associated with measuring the successful delivery of the council plan and oversight of the 
council’s overall performance. The strategic reporting consists of:

 Quarterly reporting on progress with the Dorset Council Plan to the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) / 
Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and the Cabinet. 

 Balanced scorecard reporting on service performance: monthly to CLT/ SLT; monthly to performance 
leadership group (executive directors and portfolio holders); and quarterly to the Place and Resource 
Overview Committee and the People and Health Overview Committee.

 Quarterly risk management and internal audit updates to Audit and Governance Committee. The 
Committee has an assurance role on this overarching framework and will refer any areas of high-level 
concern to the appropriate overview committee.

Adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment is tested throughout the year through 
the approval and implementation of a risk based Internal Audit Annual Plan and by operational audits. The Council 
participates in a range of external audits, inspections and accreditations to ensure it remains accountable for the 
quality of services its delivers as well to support continuous improvement of services. 

P
age 53



Pa
ge

12

Mandatory training for managers has been implemented on data protection and information management. A 
partnership information sharing protocol, and information sharing agreements are put in place where required. 
Policies that govern the use of data, and corporate data standards are in place. That encouraging effective and 
constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives to support balanced and effective decision making 
that helps to 

 Provide members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress 
towards outcome achievement

 Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 
reporting, for example, financial statements

 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives
 That its recommendations are listened to and acted ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the 

safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data

Financial procedures are documented in the Financial Regulations. Monthly budget monitoring reports on the 
MTFS (capital and revenue) are provided to senior management and committees. 

The performance framework makes use of a reporting by exception process whereby measures which are 
identified as off-track require detailed explanation from accountable managers. This will require:

 an explanation of why a target is being missed/an item is off-track 
 an action plan identifying how this will be rectified 
 timeline for returning to within tolerance (path to green) 
 an accountable officer

These actions are tracked through a dedicated action tracking process with regular status updates at subsequent 
performance meetings. New actions will be identified as part of the performance management meeting and added 
into the tracking process. 

P
age 54



Pa
ge

13

Principles Sub-principles Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes: 
G. 
Implementing good 
practices in transparency, 
reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective 
accountability

Implementing good 
practice in transparency

Implementing good 
practices in reporting

Assurance and effective 
accountability

Implementing good practices in transparency and reporting; Assurance and effective accountability

 Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and 
understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and 
interrogate.

 Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands 
and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to understand. Report 
at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources to stakeholders 
in a timely and understandable way.

 Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.

Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and 
timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other similar organisations.

Agendas, reports and minutes are published on the council’s website. Committee reports, and debates are made 
available online to the public.  Regular press releases and briefings with good press coverage. Council newsletter 
produced for all residents.  During the Covid-19 response, essential Committee meetings have been maintained 
and carried out virtually.  These remain transparent and available for viewing by the public.

The Annual Financial Statements are compiled, published to timetable and included on the council’s website. The 
Annual Government Statement (AGS) sets out the council’s governance framework and the results of the annual 
review of the effectiveness of the council’s arrangements. 

There is compliance with CIPFA Statements on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer and the Role of the Head of 
Audit. The Audit Service abides with the principles of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, but some 
development is required before full conformance can be claimed. External Audit provides an annual opinion on 
the Council’s financial statements and arrangements. 

The Council engages in peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing 
recommendations.  A peer challenge was carried out during 2019 and an improvement action plan has been 
developed.

P
age 55

https://news.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

RISK MANAGEMENT: Corporate and Service Risk Register Update May 2020

  
           Link to Corporate Risk Register on SharePoint

Service Risk Profile
Likelihood

L M H
H 55 27 12
M 47 51 8

Im
pa

ct

L 26 11 1

P
age 57

https://dorsetcc.sharepoint.com/sites/Cmrisk/Lists/Dorset%20Council%20%20Corporate%20Risk%20Register/AllItems.aspx


CRR01 - Failure to adequately manage the financial position leads to an overspend which is untenable in the medium term 
Likelihood

L M H
H 4 4 5
M 4 10 2

Im
pa

ct

L 5 1
High Risk: 125) Gap exists between amount of available resource and demand for statutory responsibilities (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Adults)

Response: We are improving performance and financial management information using scorecards, enhanced reporting and more detailed financial data and analysis.  This draws upon the 
intelligence and analysis from the monthly locality-based budget and performance meetings. A continuous drive by DLT to identify options for improving outcomes and seeking additional 
efficiencies and savings. 

We are working with Impower to embed new ways of working – pilots happening in Ferndown re first point of contact and Adult Access Team and Bridport working with Social Workers 
embedding the Strengths Based Approach. We have new assistive technology initiative working partners, Argenti.  This involves working at the front door as well as reviewing existing care and 
support arrangements for individuals. Conducting investigative work to get ahead of the game with Children’s colleagues around the needs of young people and preparing them for adulthood.  
Both around practice and our commissioning offer. We have initiated a monthly Debt Management Group looking at the end-to-end process of income collection and debt control.

Standardised the vacancy factor to 2% releasing £130k. More rigorous approach to managing the staffing establishment including improved recruitment processes with less reliance on agency 
staff and tighter control of vacancies.

High Risk: 4) Lack of joined up strategic decision making at an early stage results in increased costs for young people in transition (Risk Owner: Head of Locality Services)

Response:  An Executive Advisory Panel has been convened to set the direction for Transitions with colleagues across the People directorates (for adults and children’s).  The first meeting, an 
initial scoping workshop, is planned for 2 April 2020.  A desktop exercise has taken place to draw together information, insight and data for mental health, learning disability and adults to 
inform the Executive Advisory Panel and identify some business as usual actions for improvement.  The ownership of the Transitions budget has been transferred to Specialist Manager for 
Learning Disability and processes are being put into place to apply increased scrutiny and consistency around budget commitments and spend.

High Risk: 104) A lack of sufficiency and resilience (placements/residential/foster care) impacts negatively on the demands led budget for children in care (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for 
Care and Protection
Response: Ensuring enough local placements for our children in care, closer to their families and communities, is a priority within our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Plan. We 
are undertaking focused work during Spring and Summer 2020 to further enhance our campaigns to promote Foster Care in Dorset, this has included social media and radio campaigns.  We 
have an active group of Foster Carers who are continually helping us to shape our services and support.  We are also continuing to deliver our Looked After Children Reduction Strategy agreed 
by Cabinet in July.  This strategy explicitly states our commitment to reducing the number of children in our care.  Further information on this strategy can be found here . 

High Risk: 203) Loss/severe reduction of key public transport route(s) - e.g. no longer commercially viable, change to bus operator strategic direction (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Travel 
Operations)
Response: Providing revenue support to a public route beyond our current position would have significant financial implications – not just for one route, but for others in the network. This 
would need careful consideration and support from Cabinet  

P
age 58

https://dorsetcc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/m_eyre_dorsetcc_gov_uk/Documents/:%20https:/moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s6385/CPB%20150719%20-%20LAC%20Reduction%20Discussion%20Paper%20Exempt.pdf


High Risk: 154) Failure to achieve capital and revenue budget / savings targets for the MTFP (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)

Response: Continue to promote educational campaigns, such as, 'Right Stuff, Right Bin' to maintain and increase material capture rates for recycling and composting. Use the new in-cab 
BARTEC system to help further drive efficiencies from the existing Recycle for Dorset Service.  Maintain project register and continue to work on savings projects, such as changing collection 
points, working patterns and infrastructure (invest to save).  

Move ahead with the development of a central strategic waste transfer station to avoid an uncompetitive situation for disposal/treatment prices in Dorset. This will also build in contingency for 
waste services as our landfill sites close and our disposal options become increasingly limited. Ensure greater transfer capacity is at the heart of infrastructure programme. Work to reduce 
waste arisings and residual waste through educational campaigns (Right Stuff, Right Bin). Work with contractors to ensure contingency plans in place for Brexit.

High Risk: 156) Smaller geographical area, smaller tonnage and less competitive in waste market (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)

Response: Ensure greater transfer capacity is at the heart of our infrastructure programme, to allow for waste to be transferred further to generate greater competition. Waste disposal 
contract end dates aligned with neighbouring BCP Council to allow for future opportunities for joint procuring waste disposal and treatment solutions with larger tonnages to attract more 
competitive rates.  Continued engagement with the market to better understand what Dorset needs to do to create competition and achieve competitive disposal and treatment rates.

High Risk: 209) Change of government policy through the new DEFRA national waste strategy could impact what, and how, waste is collected and increasing costs (Risk Owner: Head of 
Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Need to respond to further consultations when they are published in 2020. These documents will give more details of minimum collection standards which will be enforced 
nationally.

High Risk: 210) Commodity prices for recyclize leads to increase in costs (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)

Response: Ensure continued investment in communication and educational resources.

High Risk: 211) Failure to maintain high recycling and waste therefore diverted to more expensive disposal (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)

Response: Ensure continued investment in communication and educational resources.

High Risk: 281) Financial viability of nursery and after school provision (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)

Response:  The position of schools and early years settings is such that full DFE grant income continues to be made available irrespective of opening status. There are some pressures on school 
budgets that are covered by exceptional DFE grants. Early years settings are commercial settings and have in some cases responded by closure and furlough.  Other settings are working closely 
with the Council to ensure they remain viable. 

Children’s Services Leadership are undertaking a review of nursery and afterschool provision in order to understand the financial viability of providing nursery and afterschool provision as a 
fully traded service.  Managers of these services have undertaken a review of income and expenditure and have put an income recovery plan in place.  This will be subject to scrutiny by the 
management team.

P
age 59



CRR02 - Loss of ICT service or data through a cyber-attack 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1
M

Im
pa

ct

L
High Risk: Loss of ICT service or data through a cyber-attack (Risk Owner: Head of ICT Operations)

Response:  Countermeasures for this risk can be split into 2 categories, Likelihood reduction and Impact reduction. 

Likelihood reduction: The most likely risk trigger is a successful phishing attempt that yields user credentials or allows malware to be installed on a device. Current industry data suggests that 
successful phishing campaigns account for up to 80% of all cyber breaches. LGA grant funding has been secured to provide user awareness training and phishing simulation capabilities for one 
year. A product has been selected and implementation of this product is expected by June 2020. Phishing simulation will allow the authority to assess the effectiveness of this training providing 
further assurance to the organisation. The ICT Operations team are working up proposals for how this can be sustained to ensure user awareness and phishing simulation capabilities are 
maintained.  There has been a focus on identity management and protection in the last 3 months, a new password policy has been agreed and is being implemented along with mandatory 
multifactor authentication and conditional access technologies. 

Impact Reduction: The Council’s overall approach to cyber security management has been under review since the end of Corporate Development Tranche 2 restructuring which confirmed the 
Cyber Security & ICT Continuity Lead appointment. A new strategy and policy are being drafted. These documents will outline the approach for the Council over the next few years and lay the 
foundation for comprehensive, interlocking countermeasures for this risk. The planned changes will allow the organisation to reduce its attack surface (likelihood) and to react quickly to a 
breach which can drastically reduce the overall impact of the incident.

CRR03 - Failure to recruit, develop and retain the required workforce skills leads to an inability to deliver the Council's vision 
Likelihood

L M H
H 2
M 2 1 1

Im
pa

ct

L 2
High Risks: 119) The period of uncertainty and transition results in difficulties retaining and motivating staff (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for HR and OD)

Response: Some employees may choose to leave during period of major change causing further demand on remaining employees. Uncertainty of the future may impact upon motivation and 
affect performance. Mitigation - Ongoing Communications and Engagement with all employees (Newsletters, Intranet, etc). Employee Forums established; Wellbeing and L&D support in place.

High Risk:112) Inability to attract and retain suitably qualified specialist safeguarding staff within Children’s Services (Corporate Director for Care & Protection)

Response:  We are progressing our recruitment and retention strategy and actively promoting Dorset Council Children’s Services as an employer of choice.  This has included:  updating our 
recruitment webpages, increased promotion nationally through leading sector professional publication, writing to staff working with us through agencies to encourage their applications to 
permanent posts, pursuing overseas recruitment.  

P
age 60



Our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme includes significant work to expand our learning and development and support offer alongside manageable caseloads, regular 
and reflective supervision and integrated teams all of which are known to be important factors influencing social workers to apply for roles.

High Risk: 202) Loss of professional engineering staff who provide advice could lead to poor decision making and potentially leave the Council liable for insurance claims if assets are not 
maintained or the appropriate response to emergency situations given (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Engineering Survives)
Response: There are many long serving staff currently retained within DC who enjoy the work and are committed to providing a service.  Recruitment methods ensure that appropriate 
candidates are recruited – although there is a national shortage of qualified Chartered Engineers. Further actions - Increase resilience by formation of coastal partnership with BCP Council to 
share and grow staff resources with ability to source greater grant income. DC recognise importance of professional qualifications and need for staff to be members of appropriate institutions – 
pay for relevant subscription fees, allow qualifications on email signatures etc

CRR04 - Failure to safeguard personal information or the misuse of information leads to a breach of the General Data Protection Regulations 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1 1
M 1

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: 212) Inadequate information governance culture and framework and culture (policy; training; monitoring etc) results in a significant data breach (Risk Owner: Service Manager for 
Assurance)
Response: The Shaping Dorset Council programme included a workstream on information governance to ensure that key policies and processes were harmonised, which has transformed into 
an Information Governance Board since 1 January 2020, chaired by the Senior Information Risk Officer.  A corporate Information Governance team was established for Tranche 2 and work is 
underway to develop an improvement action plan.  

CRR05- Failure to respond to a major event (internal or external) that could impact on the community, the environment and/or the delivery of critical Council 
services 

Likelihood
L M H

H 5 1
M 3 3

Im
pa

ct

L 3

 

High Risks: 102) Failure to respond to a major event or civil emergency that impacts on the community, the environment and/or the Council (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Assurance)
Response:  The Dorset Council Emergency Response Plan and supporting Command and Control structure was approved for Day One of Dorset Council; There is ongoing work by Local 
Resilience Forum workstreams and task & finish group leads on specific multi agency projects.

There has been a thorough training programme for the Command and Control Structure, including running several pandemic flu and BREXIT focussed exercises during 2019.

The full Command and Control structure at authority and LRF level has been in operation throughout the Covid-19 outbreak.  The risk profile for COVID-19 shows that whilst a majority of risks 
are in the ‘high’ category, posing the most amount of risk to the Council, the likelihood of these happening are ‘possible’, which could suggest that there are mitigations in place to prevent 

P
age 61



these risks from occurring. Overall, however the Council is currently facing a high-risk situation during a major incident with many factors unpredictable including the central government 
response during the outbreak. The risk management strategy at this time is for continued, focussed oversight of known risk and management of capacity to respond to priority situations as 
they evolve.    

CRR06- A failure to understand and manage EU exit implications on the Council results in a breach of statutory duty or service failure
Likelihood

L M H
H 22
M 12 11

Im
pa

ct

L 2 2

 

High Risks: None
Response: 

CRR07- Failure to provide adequate provision of infrastructure leads to inability to deliver the Council's vision 
Likelihood

L M H
H 3 1 3
M 6 2 1

Im
pa

ct

L 1 3

 

High Risks: 73) Failure to attract funding for assets that we cannot afford to maintain in future (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Infrastructure & Assets)

Response: The HAMP will help us to understand whole life cost better.  Inspection regimes for cycleway schemes are needed where we are legally responsible for their upkeep.  We are not 
going to be allowed to charge commuted sums for SUDs adoption. Further actions:
* Development of the HAMP;
* Changes to processes so future maintenance funding is considered when bidding for funds;
* DfT funding bids must be made to ensure ongoing maintenance of adopted infrastructure including footways and cycleways;
* Cycleway assets - digitised in a way that allows defects to be assigned in confirm;
* Avoid over specifying schemes;
* Develop hierarchy and inspection regime for cycle ways;
* Design schemes in the most suitable/low maintenance way;
* More robust contractual agreements where we are funding assets/equipment used by 3rd parties (i.e. so they cannot be moved out of the county, etc);

High Risk: 84) Failure to deliver a safe and suitable alternative to the current arrangements for Wareham Level Crossing (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Infrastructure & Assets)

Response: Dorset Council assumed responsibility from Dorset County Council to manage the pedestrian level crossing in Wareham.  The lease agreement between Network Rail and Dorset 
Council for the level crossing runs until 2038; this crossing will close in 2038 as per the terms of the lease.  If no suitable alternative is delivered before 2038 Dorset Council would be found to be 
breaching Equalities legislation.

P
age 62



In 2008/9 The Office for Road and Rail (ORR) raised safety concerns with the pedestrian level crossing in Wareham.  The ORR stated that mitigating measures had to be put in place or they 
would force the closure of the crossing.  As a result, Dorset County Council paid for the provision of security guards at the crossing to improve compliance and safety at the crossing.  In more 
recent years, following an additional review by the ORR the crossing has been managed with electronic gates closed by security guards when a train is approaching.  The crossing is currently 
managed between 6am and 1am (19hours) seven days a week.  The provision of security staff is provided by third party contractors STM Security Ltd.  The crossing is locked closed between 
1am and 6am each day.  Dorset Council has assumed responsibility previously held by Dorset County Council.

Network Rail and the Council have tried twice before to resolve this by proposing ramped bridges adjacent to the existing footbridge but failed to obtain planning permission from the then 
Purbeck District Council owing to local objections.

The crossing continues to be a continuing financial commitment with ongoing reputational concerns as there is no suitable alternative means for all to cross the rail lines if the crossing is closed 
– there is a stepped footbridge adjacent to the crossing.  Footway/cycleway alternatives are being explored in the area, but these are not currently seen to closing the level crossing.

There remains commitment from Dorset Council and Network Rail to finding a resolution.  Commitment from central government appears secure too following a visit by the Minister for Rail to 
the site and meeting with key stakeholders on 23 January 2020.  The Minister for Rail stated that he was committed to finding a solution and that safety and accessibility were of paramount 
importance which would likely mean that a degree of compromise is required when considering suitable alternatives.  Network Rail have agreed to explore and exhaust all possible 
technological options for providing an automated level crossing, however, it is more likely that an alternative step free route over the rail lines will be the most viable solution.  No definitive 
plans are proposed for a suitable alternative at time of writing (February 2020).

CRR07- Failure to provide adequate provision of infrastructure leads to inability to deliver the Council's vision (Cont’d) 
High Risk: 63) Inability to maintain the highways infrastructure to an acceptable standard in the face of changing circumstances (e.g. budget reductions; climate change) (Risk Owner: Head of 
Highways)
Response: Service levels have reduced due to reductions in highways revenue funding which severely impacted on drainage maintenance and pothole repairs. 

We have assessed ourselves as Band 3 status for 2020/21, therefore secured the full allocation from the Department for Transport`s Incentive Fund (£2.2million). But under investment in 
revenue maintenance funding has contributed to a reduction in scores for some questions, to Band 2, specifically relating to drainage and pothole repairs. To have dropped into Band 2 overall, 
would have resulted in a loss of £1.5million.  

The Highways EAP have made recommendations to Cabinet to reinstate essential maintenance funding. Further submissions for central government funding will be made as and when the 
opportunities arise. Further actions:

 Highway maintenance revenue budget report
 Annual business cases for capital investment in highway maintenance;
 Develop a risk-based approach to cyclic drainage maintenance
 Further bids for extra funds from central government, and other sources, where appropriate;

Deliver Action Plan to achieve full available funding from DfT incentivised funding

High Risk: 204) Dorset Travel fails to procure and implement a suitable replacement for its core transport management system by Nov 2020 (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Travel 
Operations)
Response: Procuring a more effective replacement for is key to any service efficiencies, savings and improvements in future. We have no further options for extending the current contract.

P
age 63



High Risk: 208) Gaining sites and planning to provide infrastructure leads to failure to deliver service (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)

Response: Strategic case business planning being developed for infrastructure

CRR08- Failure to provide a good education to young people in Dorset 
Likelihood

L M H
H
M

Im
pa

ct

L
High Risks: None
Response: 

CRR09- A failure to manage the service transformation process results in poor service outcomes and negative staff morale 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1 1
M

Im
pa

ct

L 1

 

High Risks: 231) Securing enough and appropriate skills and resources through restructuring of service to deliver DC economic growth strategy (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Growth & 
Economic Regeneration)
Response: Informed restructuring process

CRR10- Failure to manage the extent of staff changes and structural change results in a significant loss of corporate knowledge 
Likelihood

L M H
H
M 1 1

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: None

Response: 

P
age 64



CRR11 - Failure to protect our environment and adapt services and communities to the impacts of a changing climate 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1 1 1
M 1

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: 201) Climate change effects on sea level rise and uncertainty could lead to low lying areas such as Weymouth being uneconomic to defend (Risk Owner: Service Manager for 
Engineering & Special Projects)
Response: Latest inter-governmental guidance is used when designing coast defences, design life of 50 years.  Shoreline Management plan review – agree to use managed realignment of 
coastline in areas. May have to design coastal defences for 100 years life and accept increased costs of doing so.  May have to relocate coastal communities.  Work with, not against, nature.
Further bids to Defra and others to increase funding above EA thresholds for erosion management and flood defence works. EA grant calculator update expected spring 2020, potential for 
increased funding to protect infrastructure and economic activity.  Funding currently mainly based on numbers of homes protected”

High Risk: 140) Failure to adapt services and communities to the impacts of a changing climate 

Response:  To follow

CRR12 - Failure of process, policy or procedure leads to a breach of statutory duty, litigation or cessation of critical service 
Likelihood

L M H
H 6 1 1
M 5 3 1

Im
pa

ct

L 2

 

High Risks: 247) Temporary Accommodation is insufficient to meet community need (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Housing Solutions)

Response: It is planned to appoint additional resource to the accommodation team so that additional suitable temporary accommodation can be sourced from the private sector.  Numbers of 
households in B&B accommodation is at an all-time high and increasing with many exceeding the 6-week statutory time limit. There is an increase in demand for temporary accommodation 
from people who are homeless and from our rough sleeping community along with the reduction in social rented accommodation available all attributable to the to the Covid-19 crisis. The 
Accommodation Finder is an officer on the team who sources new properties for leasing.  She has been successful in resourcing new properties which will help reduce the number in B&B but as 
a part-time role additional capacity is needed in the team.

High Risk: 194) Lack of five-year housing land supply, or failure to meet Housing Delivery Test, means that policies are considered out of date and there is risk of having to allow more 
applications and of losing planning appeals (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Spatial Planning)
Response: Further actions - Ensure that new local plan allocates a good supply of sites against the targets, that there is a variety of sites and that they have a good chance of delivery.
Ensure local plan is progressed at intended speed. Ensure that the issue is clearly explained to planning committee members and that we allow applications where appropriate, where we do 
not have the five-year supply.

P
age 65



High Risk: 62) Traffic Commissioner Revoking, Curtailing, Suspending or Restricting DCC's Operators Licence (Goods and/or Passenger Carrying Operators Licence) (Risk Owner: Head of Waste & 
Operations)
Response: Whilst the Council's Risk Compliance Score remains Green, a targeted inspection from the Traffic Commissioners has highlighted several improvements required.  This has prompted 
an audit of our fleet operations (undertaken by the Freight Transport Association) and a resulting action plan which has been submitted to the Traffic Commissioner. A failure to demonstrate 
improvement risks the O Licence being revoked, curtailed, suspend or restricted, which would impact significantly on our ability to deliver critical services as well as severe reputational 
damage. The Executive Director for Place is receiving monthly compliance reports.

Further actions -Action plan has been submitted and accepted by the Office of the Traffic Commissioner for the Goods licence. The Office of the traffic Commissioner has granted a period of 3 
months grace on the PSV licence for a named transport manager to be added to the licence. “

CRR13 - Failure to protect the health, safety and wellbeing of staff, contractors or the public leads to significant financial and/or reputational damage 
Likelihood

L M H
H 4 1 1
M 2 7

Im
pa

ct

L 1

 

High Risks: 138) Breach of health and safety at an occupied premise (Directorate Duty Holder) (Risk Owner: Head of Assets & Property)

Response: Many sites now have a nominated Premises Responsible Person. However, restructuring of services and adoption of Corporate Landlord model has reduced local understanding of 
the Directorate Duty Holder Strategy. The strategy is ratified and DDH nominees have been identified.  Grenfell Tower fire has implicated the need for a review of fire safety and specific review 
of individual property risks. 

Comply with DCLG/DFES requests for information/ complete our own fire risk reviews additionally and implement actions arising. 

High Risk: 83) PUWER Regulations - non-compliance of PUWER Regulations (H&S Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations 1998) (Risk Owner: Head of Waste & Operations)

Response: There is a clear visual view to identify if individual plant items comply with the control measures. Each depot has a tagging colour scheme poster available to all operators. The 
system is simple and effective. Fleet will continue to monitor and audit the process to ensure compliance is consistent and maintained, with support from H&S;
* Countryside service is to start the first round of PUWER checks in February using the new process;
* Highways have completed the first round of 6 monthly checks in October and no items are outstanding;
* Highways compliance is excellent and is totally compliant. Countryside are struggling currently, but Fleet are aware of additional resources to catch up with the situation. Admin resources 
have been trained to implement the documents that are currently sat on desks. Fleet wave is showing 299 records from the Countryside service awaiting completed PUWER inspection sheets. 
Emails sent out explaining the current risk to the authority;
* Countryside and grounds are increasing the number of staff to carry out PUWER checks. Fleet Service to instruct on the practical checks and supply training on the Fleet Wave system to the 
nominated staff;
* The risk has changed to red due to the current situation. Audit of the system has resulted in 381 items of Countryside plant waiting for a PUWER sheet and the Fleet wave system to be 
updated. 80 items for Highways also in the same situation. The system was 95% compliant, but due to the current situation this has greatly reduced to 55% compliant. Update - the outstanding 
PUWER inspections have been completed from the previous scheduled programme. The next programmed 6-monthly PUWER inspections is currently in operation and will report on 
outstanding items not actioned next month.

P
age 66



CRR14 - A safeguarding failure results in the harm or neglect of a vulnerable person 
Likelihood

L M H
H 2 3
M 1

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: 151) Major safeguarding incident (including death or serious injury) arises on adult transport due to lack of supervision (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Transport Operations)

Response: Passenger Assistants (PAs) on all or selected adult social care transport. Address this matter in future commissioning strategy for adults

High Risk: 106) Failure to understand and respond to the changing nature of exploitation results in a safeguarding failure (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)

Response:  Our new Pan-Dorset Safeguarding Partnership arrangements are now in place including the appointment of a highly regarded and experienced national sector leader as 
Independent Scrutineer.  We, along with partners across Dorset County have published our new Child Exploitation Strategy 2020-2022 setting out how together we will ensure an effective 
and coordinated response to children and young people at risk of, or linked to exploitation, identifying potential risk early to reduce risk and harm.

High Risk: 105) Failure to keep children safe that are known to, or in the care of, Dorset Council (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)

Response:  We are undertaking work to further strengthen practice and services through our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme.  

CRR15 - Failure to effectively commission services results in poor value for money, service failure or legal challenge 
Likelihood

L M H
H 3
M 2

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: 5) Failure to manage and shape the provider market and associated increases in service costs and poor service (Risk Owner: Head of Commissioning)

Response:  Risk review to be undertaken by Risk and Resilience Officer

High Risks: Insufficient controls in place to ensure that operational employees use framework agreements effectively when sourcing education and support for child (Risk Owner: Corporate 
Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)

Response:  As part of the new model for children’s services, sourcing of education and support will be undertaken by a single team and under a single management structure.  This will ensure 
that operational colleagues use their skills to assess and identify need and provide direct support to children and families.  Brokerage officers will use a range of compliant procurement 
mechanisms (including framework agreements) to secure value for money for the council.  The leadership team will continue to review and monitor external spend to provide assurance of 
compliance.

P
age 67



High Risks: 277) Insufficient availability of local placements and supported accommodation to meet local needs (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)

Response:  Ensuring sufficient local placements for our children in care closer to their families and communities and ensuring sufficient accommodation options for young people leaving care 
and other vulnerable young people is a priority within our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Plan.
We have developed and published the Dorset Young People’s Protocol between Housing and Children’s Services, this is a joint protocol that describes how Housing and Children’s Services will 
work together jointly to address the needs of 16 and 17 year olds.

CRR16 - Failure to maintain an effective political and managerial interface leads to a breakdown in effectiveness 
Likelihood

L M H
H
M 1

Im
pa

ct

L 1

 

High Risks: None

Response: 

CRR17 - Major service failure associated with transport provision for schools 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1
M

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: None

Response: 

P
age 68



CRR18 - Failure to use enough and meaningful evidence leads to incorrect decisions 
Likelihood

L M H
H 3 1
M 1 1

Im
pa

ct

L 1

 

High Risks: 107) Inadequate evidence base (including Partnership data) to determine service need for children’s care and protection (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)

Response:  We are undertaking significant work to further strengthen practice and services through our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme.  The developments in 
Business Intelligence are supporting us to understand and model service need, and we will continue to develop this approach.  

CRR19 - Failure to sustain an effective relationship with key partners results in a service delivery failure 
Likelihood

L M H
H
M 1 5

Im
pa

ct

L 2

 

High Risks: None

Response: 

CRR20 - Failure to successfully deliver an election impacts on the Council’s reputation and incurs costs 
Likelihood

L M H
H 1
M

Im
pa

ct

L

 

High Risks: None

Response: 

P
age 69



Other Risks (Not Linked to a Corporate Risk)
Likelihood

L M H
H 4 2
M 5 7 3

Im
pa

ct

L 9 2

 

High Risks: 141) Changes to national planning policy lead to delays to prep of the Local Plan Review (Risk Owner: Head of Planning)

Response: Risk review to be undertaken by Risk and Resilience Officer

High Risk: 206) Changes to legislation around community transport groups operating under Section 19 and Section 22 licences could significantly affect the viability of community transport in 
future (Risk Owner: Head of Dorset Travel)
Response: Difficult to define clearly now until the results and timeframes from the judicial review are made public

High Risk: 228) Changing funding landscape and ability to secure investment funding for Dorset (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Growth & Economic Regeneration)

Response: Further actions - Collation and evaluation of evidence and preparation of schemes and business cases

High Risk: 205) Unviability of school bus services caused by failure to cut back overhanging trees and vegetation along routes (Risk Owner: Head of Dorset Travel)

Response: Facilitate communication and cooperation between the provider and DC's Highways and Arboriculture teams

High Risk: 190) Significant Health and Safety incident / accident investigation and subsequent prosecution taking significant officer time away from normal duties resulting in lack of resource 
and risk to public health along with significant legal costs for the council (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Food, Safety & Port Health)
Response: As required staff who are managing a significant case will have other statutory duties passed to other team members. Prioritisation of work to concentrate on high risk premises.

Further Action - Ensure that staffing numbers and capacity is enough to carry out significant investigation work without significant impact on other statutory work.
Consideration of cross departmental work with Trading Standards on proceeds of crime action and resource allocation to support legal work.

P
age 70



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

Internal Audit  Risk  Special Investigations  Consultancy 
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 

Dorset Council 
Report of Internal Audit Activity  
Plan Progress 2019/20 – June 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7



Executive Summary 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 1 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

The Assistant Director is required to 
provide an annual opinion to support 
the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
As part of our plan progress reports, 
we will provide an ongoing opinion to 
support the end of year annual 
opinion. 
 
We will also provide details of any 
significant risks that we have 
identified in our work, along with the 
progress of mitigating previously 
identified significant risks by audit. 
 
 
The contacts at SWAP in  
connection with this report are: 
 
Rupert Bamberger 
Assistant Director 
Tel: 07720312464 
rupert.bamberger@swapaudit.co.uk 
 
Sally White 
Principal Auditor 
Tel:  01305 224488 
sally.white@swapaudit.co.uk 
 

  Introduction, Audit Opinion and Summary of Significant Risks 

  

Introduction 
SWAP were due to provide a update report to the Audit and Governance Committee on 24 March 2020. The 
papers for the meeting were issued to members, however before the meeting took place the Country was placed 
in lockdown due to the Covid-19 pandemic. At that point SWAP was asked to suspend all audit work until further 
notice, as the Council focused on responding to the pandemic. In response to this SWAP volunteered its staff 
through the Skills Agency and three members of staff were redeployed in frontline services in Revenues and 
Benefits, and the Registration Service, whilst our other staff took the opportunity to develop SWAP strategic 
ambitions around data analytics and innovative auditing techniques, along with providing pieces of advice and 
guidance work.   
 
This update report covers the quarter 3 information that was due to be discussed at the March meeting and has 
been updated to cover the period up to the end of the financial year. Our ongoing audit opinion within this report 
is limited to 31 March 2020 and whilst we would normally be providing a quarter 1 update around this time, due 
to the unprecedented circumstances  we are only just starting to resume our day to day audit assurance work and 
as such are picking up a number of audits that were ongoing and close to reporting stage at the time our work was 
suspended.  It should be noted that our annual audit opinion for 2019-20 will be based on almost a whole year’s 
work and will be provided to the committee in our annual report in September, however our annual opinion for 
2020-21 will not be based on a whole year’s assurance work.  
 
Audit Opinion: 
Audit reviews completed to the point at which audit work was suspended, highlight that in the majority of areas, 
risks are reasonably well managed with the systems of internal control working effectively.  
 
However, since our last report in December 2019, we have issued five partial opinions on the areas and activities 
we have been auditing. One of these partial opinion pieces of work has been classified as a significant risk and 
further detail is provided below and also on page 8. In addition, in Appendix A on pages 7-14, we provide a 
summary of each partial opinion, in order to provide the committee with further insight. 
 

P
age 72



Executive Summary 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 2 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
Significant Risks: 
An audit of the use of Pupil Premium Plus (PPP) Grant by the Virtual School (VS) for Looked After Children (LAC) 
found that it was not possible to evidence that the grant is used effectively in every instance to provide the best 
value for money for the Council and achieve improved educational outcomes for LAC.  This results in Looked After 
young people potentially making poorer educational progress than might have been possible with more effective 
oversight and control in place. However, following our audit, swift and positive progress was being made toward 
implementing our recommendations. We had programmed a follow up review for April, however it wasn’t possible 
to undertake this at that time due to the Covid-19 lockdown and we will be aiming to undertake this work prior to 
the school summer break, with the aim of reporting the outcomes in September.  
 
Follow up 
When we undertake follow up audits, we would ideally hope to find all our recommendations implemented, 
however often this is not the case, sometimes for good reason. However, we monitor and report to members the 
percentage of high priority (priority 1 and 2) recommendations that are not implemented at the time of our follow 
up audits despite the implementation date having passed. We would draw members attention to the figure of 
79% on page 2 below, which has increased since our December report. We have also included in Appendix A, a 
summary of follow up audits where we feel that insufficient progress has been made towards implementing our 
recommendations. When this occurs, we will agree new implementation dates and schedule a further follow up 
review to ensure that sufficient progress has been made.  
 
 

P
age 73



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 3 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 

The Chief Executive Officer for SWAP 
reports performance on a regular basis 
to the SWAP Directors and Owners 
Boards. 

  SWAP Performance 

  

SWAP performance is subject to regular review by both the Directors and Owners meetings. The respective 
outturn performance results for Dorset Council for the 2019/20 year (as at 24 June 2020) are as follows: 
 

 Performance Target Performance 
 

Audit Plan – Percentage Progress* 
Completed 

Work at Report Stage 
Fieldwork 
Scoping 

Not yet Started 
* The percentages are based on the internal audit work commenced prior to lockdown 
** Note: audit work was suspended following lockdown hence the percentage of work at            
report stage  
  

 75% 
      24%** 

1% 
0% 
0% 

 

Quality of Audit Work 
Overall Client Satisfaction 

(did our work meet or exceed expectations, when looking at our 
Communication, Auditor Professionalism and Competence, and 

Value to the Organisation) 

 
97.3% 

 
 

 
 

Outcomes from Follow Up Audit Work 
Percentage of Priority 1&2 recommendations for Partial assurance 

audits, that remain outstanding when the follow up audit is 
undertaken 

Value to the Organisation 
(client view of whether our audit work met or exceeded 

expectations, in terms of value to their area) 

79% 
(11 of 14) 

 
 

95.45% 

 

P
age 74



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 4 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 

Value Added 
 
‘Extra feature(s) of an item of interest 
(product, service, person etc.) that go 
beyond the standard expectations and 
provide something more while adding 
little or nothing to its cost.’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Value Added 

  
SWAP strives to add value wherever possible i.e. going beyond the standard expectations and providing 
something ‘more’ while adding little or nothing to the cost. 

In our December report to member, we outlined our intention to expand on our current regular data analytics 
work to develop a range of reports, similar to the duplicate payment work that we have been reporting for some 
time, to identify potential fraud and errors within the Council’s transaction base. This work is progressing, and 
SWAP have appointed two Data Analysts who are assisting our auditors as part of the routine audit work.  

In addition, SWAP is looking to introduce a process of Continuous Auditing. This is a method whereby audit 
testing of key controls of an areas or activity, is performed on a more frequent basis. It changes the audit 
approach from periodic reviews incorporating a small sample of transactions, to ongoing testing of a larger 
overall sample, with audit results produced shortly after testing. The benefits are a more reactive and timely 
approach to auditing which gives a continuous assurance on systems and processes throughout the year.  

During the latter part of 2019-20 we assisted with the compilation of the Council’s Service risk registers. 
Meetings were held with Service Managers who had yet to complete their risk register in order to discuss key 
service risks and mitigating controls. The outcomes of these meetings then formed the basis for a service risk 
register.  

We have been providing Dorset Council with additional support on oversight of National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
data matching whilst the staffing structures under Tranche 2 were resolved, and the oversight and co-ordination 
responsibility for NFI was allocated to a specific post.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 75



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 5 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
Approved Changes: 
 
We keep our plans under regular review 
so as to ensure that we are auditing the 
right things at the right time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Changes to the Audit Plan 

  
We regularly re-visit and adjust our programme of audit work to ensure that it matches the changing risk profile 
of the organisation’s operations, systems and priorities. As we approached the end of the financial year, there 
were a number of audits that had been requested to be deferred as the timing was not right for audit to be able 
to add value or the arrangements were still in their infancy. These have been detailed below:  
 

Ethics and Culture 
Following some concerns around this audit it has been requested that this be removed from the audit plan.  
School Off-Rolling 
The Executive Director for Children’s Services had some concerns around the piece of work, she has instead asked for audit 
work next year around how the LA flags schools of concern.   
Achievement of Savings Plans 
We were asked to defer this work as plans have not been sufficiently developed as yet.  
Software Licences  
Head of ICT operations indicated that the work should be deferred due to the convergence work required as a result of LGR.  
Grants to Partnerships and Voluntary Organisations 
The council has agreed for 2020-21 to roll forward predecessor grants. 2021-22 will see implementation of a new approach 
which will inevitably require a period of bedding in and change and therefore the audit has been requested to be deferred.  
Licencing Compliance 
There had been a delay to the appointment of a new Licencing Manager who took up their appointment during February. 
Therefore we were asked to defer this work to allow the new manager a period of time to settle.  
Building Control 
This area has been subject to an ongoing investigation which has recently concluded; as such our work will be form part of 
a future audit plan. 
Dorset HomeChoice 
There is a need to review and revise the current policy and as such there is little value in auditing against an out of date 
policy. The go-live date for the new policy is April 2021 so the audit is requested to be deferred. 
Role of the Dorset Manager 
Due to the migration of payroll data and the subsequent availability of staff it was requested that this audit be rolled 
forwards into the 2020-21 audit plan . 
 

P
age 76



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 6 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
Education Health Care Plans 
A systems review has recently been undertaken by an external contractor and it is requested that we move our audit into 
the 2020-21 audit plan which will enable us to review implementation of the recommendations made in this review. 
Scheme of Nomination (Delegation)  
The Schemes of Nomination are still currently being updated, consequently we were asked to defer this work. 
Coroner’s Service 
There has been a delay in BCP agreeing to DC undertaking the audit review so this work will now be moved into the 2020-
21 audit plan.  
 
The following audits had started but insufficient progress made to be able to conclude or work had not started 
at the time audit work was suspended due to Covid-19.  
Use of Pupil Premium in Schools 
Accounts Receivable 
Treasury Management 
IT Consolidation Project 
Service Continuity 
Review of reserves  
Asset Valuation 
Land Charges  
 
All the above audits will be risk assessed and potentially rolled forward into the 2020/21 audit plan once the 
priorities of audit work have been established.  
 
  

P
age 77



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                   APPENDIX A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 7 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

The role of SWAP as the internal auditors for Dorset Council is to provide independent assurance that the Council’s risk management, governance and internal 
control processes are operating effectively. In order for senior management and members to be able to appreciate the implications of the assurance provided within 
an audit report, SWAP provide an assurance opinion. We have four opinion ratings defined as follows:  
 

Assurance Definitions 

None 
The areas reviewed were found to be inadequately controlled. Risks are not well managed and systems require the introduction or improvement of internal 
controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 
 

Partial 
In relation to the areas reviewed and the controls found to be in place, some key risks are not well managed and systems require the introduction or 
improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 
 

Reasonable 
Most of the areas reviewed were found to be adequately controlled.  Generally, risks are well managed but some systems require the introduction or 
improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 
 

Substantial 
The areas reviewed were found to be adequately controlled.  Internal controls are in place and operating effectively and risks against the achievement of 
objectives are well managed. 
 

 
In addition to the assurance definitions above we have also introduced an ‘assurance dial’ which indicates on a range of high medium or low where within the range 
of that assurance a particular audit assurance sits.  

 
As can be seen in this example the assurance provided is low partial as the dial is sitting on the lower end of the partial scale. It could equally 
have been a medium partial assurance where the dial sits midway or high partial when it is sitting at the upper end close to the reasonable 
assurance.  
 

We provide the Committee with details of the overall assurance opinion for all completed audits and they can be seen in the plan progress table in Appendix B on 
page 153 below. The Committee have indicated that they would like additional insight into Partial audits that have a high number of recommendations and/or could 
be a cause for concern. We have therefore introduced a new section of our report which provides further information for members on the partial assurance audits 
completed to date. We have also included the position on the dial, so members are also able to gauge where the audit sits within the partial assurance range. As a 
further enhancement, we are now including more detail on follow up audits where we consider the pace of progress toward implementation of our 
recommendations, to be limited.   

P
age 78



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 8 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 
 

Audit Scope and Objective Opinion 
No of 
Rec 

1 = 
Major 

 3 = 
Minor 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Use of Pupil Premium for Looked After 
Children 

 
To provide assurance that appropriate governance, processes and 
procedures are in place to ensure that pupil premium is used to best effect 
to achieve improved outcomes for Looked After Children   
 
 

 

Low Partial 
18 4 10 4 

Summary of Findings 
An audit of the use of Pupil Premium Plus (PPP) Grant by the Virtual School (VS) for Looked After Children (LAC) found that it was not possible to make value judgements on the 
educational and supportive interventions provided by external suppliers. Often there are no outcomes and impact assessments provided by suppliers or if there are, these are of 
poor quality. As a result, it is not always possible for the VS to evidence an assessment of the value of the intervention, either financially or on the progress of the young person.  
 
We reviewed the educational progress of a sample of 18 young people and found that only three of the 18 had made any significant progress; eight had made some progress; with 
the remaining seven young people having made no or little progress despite some LAC having no PPP grant spent on their support and others up to £17,000. There is no decision-
making matrix or framework to guide the decision-making process meaning that the identified variations in spend are not justified or evidenced in a systematic way.   
 
The PPP grant received in 2018-19 to support the education of LAC, for whom the corporate parent is Dorset Council, was £937,885 with each attracting £2,300. It was not possible 
to accuracy identify the amount spent on individual children, with PPP grant being spent on young people who were not Looked After and did not attract PPP funding for the 
Virtual School, such as those on the edge of care or having been adopted, with some individual non-LAC’s receiving in excess of £20,000 of support whilst some LAC’s received no 
funding support across the financial years 2018-19 and 2019-20.  
 
Since our audit concluded in December, work has been ongoing to implement the recommendations made within the report. A brief update in February indicated excellent 
progress appeared to be being made but more time was needed to demonstrate that new processes are fully embedded and working as intended. Prior to the Covid -19 emergency 
we had planned to undertake a follow up audit in April, however we now hope to pick up this work prior to the school summer holidays and report to members in September.  
 

P
age 79



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 9 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Scope and Objective Opinion 
No of 
Rec 

1 = 
Major 

 3 = 
Minor 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Framework for Assessing the 
Effectiveness of Social Care Practice 

 
To provide assurance that a framework is in place to ensure that social care 
practice meets the quality standards expected in order to deliver positive 
outcomes for children and young people in need. 
 

Low Partial 

6 - 6 - 

Summary of Findings 
There is no clearly communicated overarching framework of values and standards through which the effectiveness of practice within Children’s Social Care is routinely assessed. 
As such, it was not possible to provide a definitive opinion on the effectiveness of practice itself. 
 
The Directorate does have a case audit programme in place, and this is providing an overview of the quality of practice evidenced in a sample of cases each month. At the time of 
fieldwork, at least 30% of audited cases had been considered either ‘Inadequate’ or ‘Requires Improvement’ each month, suggesting significant gaps in the general quality of 
practice. However, with the previously established Quality Assurance meeting not in effect at the time of our fieldwork, we are concerned that the recurring findings and themes 
identified through the programme are not currently being reported to an appropriate forum through which a constructive and collaborative response can be made to guide 
improved practice.  
 
Our own review of cases has identified some common barriers to effective practice; in summary, these were issues with case supervision, closure of cases and case drift often due 
to handovers between social workers. We understand that solutions to these and other issues will be considered as part of the forthcoming ‘Blueprint for Change’ transformation 
of Children’s Services. This appears to be a timely opportunity to reach out to all levels of the Directorate in order to build a quality assurance framework for practice that is 
transparent and meaningful to all. 
 
Actions to our recommendations have been agreed and we will undertake a follow up audit in due course.  
 

P
age 80



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 10 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Scope and Objective Opinion 
No of 
Rec 

1 = 
Major 

 3 = 
Minor 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Compliance with IR35 Legislation 

 
To ensure that Dorset Council appropriately applies the intermediary’s 
legislation (IR35) across each legacy Council and is not adversely impacted 
during the ongoing period of convergence. 
 

 
High Partial 

4 - 2 2 

Summary of Findings 
IR35 is a complex area of tax consideration relating to the engagement of individuals to provide services through intermediary companies. Currently there are two separate routes 
for the potential identification and determination of IR35 status. This can either be through the Procurement route or through the HR & Payroll Team. As a result, there is a lack 
of corporate oversight across the entirety of IR35 activity to ensure that all potential cases are appropriately identified and actioned in a consistent manner that ensures compliance 
with the IR35 regulation.  
 
The lack of corporate oversight is due to be discussed and actions agreed by SLT and we will undertake a follow up audit in due course to assess progress.  
 

P
age 81



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 11 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 

Audit Scope and Objective Opinion 
No of 
Rec 

1 = 
Major 

 3 = 
Minor 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Financial Reconciliations  

 
To give assurance that regular reconciliations are undertaken on a timely 
basis to identify potential inaccurate or fraudulent transactions. 
 

 
Mid Partial 

4 - 2 2 

Summary of Findings 
The review of financial reconciliations across Dorset Council (DC) and legacy councils; Dorset County Council (DCC), West Dorset District Council (WDDC), Weymouth and 
Portland Borough Council (WPBC), Purbeck District Council (PDC), North Dorset District Council (NDDC) and East Dorset District Council (EDDC), has found that predecessor 
accounts of DCC are being reconciled in a satisfactory and timely manner. However, staffing restructures as a result of Local Government Reorganisation has had an impact on 
the timely completion of bank reconciliations for both PDC and EDDC, with the last completed reconciliation for EDDC being April 2019 and August 2019 for PDC. Further to this, 
the PDC bank reconciliations for July and August were found not to balance. 
 
A recommendation previously raised regarding the establishment and introduction of clearing items from DCP Suspense Accounts has not been implemented and the review has 
highlighted that at the time of the audit, 40% (£13,467) of WDDC Suspense Items were 3 months and older and 63% (£402,154) was 3 months and older for WPBC. Therefore, it 
is clear there is still a need to ensure the build-up of unmatched items is reduced. In addition, it was unclear if monthly reconciliations are carried out across the legacy district 
and borough councils for Interest on Loans and Borrowing.  
 
There has been agreement to our recommendations, and we will undertake follow work in due course to confirm progress.  
 

P
age 82



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 12 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 

Audit Scope and Objective Opinion 
No of 
Rec 

1 = 
Major 

 3 = 
Minor 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Public Law Outline 

 
To give assurance that full use is made of the pre-proceedings process, 
ensuring that letters of expectation are accurate and issued in a timely 
manner.  
 

 
Mid Partial 

7 - 3 4 

Summary of Findings 
The pre-proceedings process is intended to be a final opportunity for parents to improve the standard of care for their children in order to avoid court proceedings being taken 
by the local authority to remove the children and place them under local authority care in accordance with the Children Act 1989. One of the core principles of the process is 
that unnecessary delay is avoided. Timely implementation of plans and assessments together with regular monitoring and review should result in cases either being stepped 
down from the process or progressed to court in an efficient way, which will be in the best interests of the child.  
 
Review of a sample of cases that have been subject to the pre-proceedings process has shown that in the majority of cases, the length of time they are within this process is 
significant, and generally longer than the best practice guidance limit of six months. It has been noted that the ability to track cases through the process has improved greatly in 
recent months through the use of a revised tracking spreadsheet and we would advise the use of this is continued and expanded to enable the full benefits of time-tracking and 
data collection to be realised. 
 
Whilst there is a substantial body of policy, protocol and statutory guidance available to inform the conduct of the pre-proceedings process once it has started, it would be 
beneficial for this to be supplemented by more specific criteria and decision-making tools to enhance the efficiency and consistency of decision-making. This would enable there 
to be clarity at all levels regarding when cases are appropriate to begin and end the pre-proceedings process, helping to keep it defined and focussed. 
 
Testing of a sample of cases has also shown a lack of evidence being stored on the Mosaic database for each key stage of the process. In many cases the records were either 
missing, not uploaded to the system in a timely manner or could be improved in terms of content. Evidence gathered through the pre-proceedings process is likely to be relevant 
to any court proceedings if issued, particularly when in dispute, and so comprehensive and accurate record keeping is essential. This will ensure the court has the full body of 
evidence needed to make a timely and properly informed decision regarding the care of a child. 
 
There has been agreement to our recommendations, and we will undertake follow work in due course to confirm progress.  
 

P
age 83



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 13 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 

Follow up Audit Scope and Objective 
Progress assessment 

 

Portesham school 
To assess the progress made in implementation 
of the recommendations made following our 
original audit which was given a partial opinion.  

 
Progress Summary 

 
Completed In Progress 

Not 
Started 

New 
Recommendation Total 

Priority 1 - - - - - 
Priority 2 0 5 1 0 6 
Priority 3 2 4 1 1 8 
Total  2 9 2 1 14 

 

Summary of Findings 
The original audit was concluded in July 2019. The follow up audit was undertaken during the period November 2019 to January 2020. The period of follow up was longer than 
might have been expected as the Headteacher was not available to auditors on the arranged day of the follow up visit. This necessitated further e-mail correspondence to gather 
evidence of progress which has elongated, what would normally have been, a relatively quick process.  
 
Overall the assessment is that progress towards implementation of our recommendations has been slow as can be seen from the table above. One area of concern highlighted in 
the original audit was reimbursements to staff for purchases made directly by them rather than using the schools official ordering and payment process. As this practice was still 
in place at the time of the follow up review, we made a further recommendation that the school obtains a procurement card to assist with local, minor purchases, however this 
should not detract from the need to place orders and make financial commitments in the system thus ensuring there are adequate systems of internal control to manage purchases, 
payments and budgetary control.  
 
At the time of our original audit there were a number of queries around reimbursements to a particular member of staff. These queries related to incorrect calculations of amounts 
due and potential duplicate reimbursements. A recommendation was made that the Governing Body investigate the queries further to identify the amount of overpayment to 
this individual and make appropriate recovery. It would seem that this action has not been pursued.   
 
We intend to undertake a further follow up audit to ensure that action to implement our recommendations is appropriately concluded.  
 

P
age 84



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2019/20 – Partial Opinion Audits                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 14 of 18 

          
Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 

Follow up Audit Scope and Objective 
Progress assessment 

 

Whistleblowing 
To assess the progress made in implementation 
of the recommendations made following our 
original audit which was given a partial opinion.  

 
Progress Summary  

 Completed In progress Not Started Total 

Priority 1 - - - - 
Priority 2 1 3 1 5 
Priority 3  0 1 2 3 
Total  1 4 3 8 

 

Summary of Findings 
The original audit work was concluded in October 2018 with eight recommendations being made. Five of which were priority 2 and three priority 3. The Follow up audit was 
concluded in July 2019 where progress in implementing the recommendations was found to be limited with only one of the recommendations having been completed, four in 
progress and work was yet to start on implementing three recommendations. Revised implementation dates within this report indicated all outstanding recommendations would 
be implemented by 1st September 2019 and it was agreed that audit would undertake a further follow up review after this date.  
 
Since this date there has been a change of Service Manager as part of the Tranche 1b staffing restructure and we had planned to complete a further follow up. We have been 
notified that limited further progress has been made, although we have been given an assurance that work will be prioritised to ensure that our recommendations are 
implemented.  
 
 

P
age 85



Internal Audit Work Programme – 2019-20                                                                                                      Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 15 of 18 

       
Unrestricted 

At the conclusion of audit assignment work each review is given an Audit Assurance; a summary of the assurance levels is as follows: 
 Substantial – Well controlled and risks well managed. 
 Reasonable – Adequately controlled and risks reasonably well managed. 
 Partial –Systems require control improvements and some key risks are not well managed.  
 None – Inadequately controlled and risks are not well managed 
 

Audit Type Audit Area Quarter Status Opinion No of 
Rec 

1 = Major  3 = 
Medium 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Completed Work  

Operational Election Readiness 1 Final Advice and 
Guidance N/A    

Operational Induction and Training of Elected Members 1 Final Substantial 2 - - 2 

Operational Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership – Enterprise Zone 1 Final Partial 5 - 5 - 

Grant Certification Weymouth Port Health Authority – Annual Review 1  Final  Grant 
Certification N/A    

Grant Certification Dorset Gateway LEP  1 Final Grant 
Certification N/A    

Grant Certification Troubled Families 1 -4 Final  Grant 
Certification N/A    

Follow up  Family Partnership Zones 1 Final N/A 3 - 1 2 

Operational Mountjoy School 1 Final Advice and 
Guidance N/A    

Follow up  Deferred Payments (DCC) 1 Final N/A 0 - - - 

 Follow up Sickness Management (DCP) 1 Final N/A 1 - 1 - 

Follow up Data Handling and Disposal (DCP) 1 Final N/A 4 - - 4 

P
age 86



Internal Audit Work Programme – 2019-20                                                                                                      Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 16 of 18 

       
Unrestricted 

Audit Type Audit Area Quarter Status Opinion No of 
Rec 

1 = Major  3 = 
Medium 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Follow up  Whistleblowing (DCC)  1 Final N/A 7 - 4 3 

Operational Property Maintenance Framework 1 Final Reasonable 3 - 1 2 

Operational  Portesham School 1 Final Partial 13 - 6 7 

Operational  Recording of the new Dorset Council Budget 1 Final Advice and 
Guidance N/A    

Operational Homes Dorset  1 Final Partial 10 3 4 3 

Operational Property Asset Management 2 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

Operational Policy Convergence 2 Final Partial  6 - 4 2 

Follow up  Deprivation of Assets 2 Final  N/A     

Operational  GDPR Compliance 2  Final  Advice and 
Guidance N/A   O  

Operational Financial Assessments 1 Final Reasonable 5 - - 5 

Operational Communication with Staff 2 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

Operational Fostering Service 2 Final Partial 4 - 3 1 

Grant Certification Christchurch Disabled Facilities Grant 3 Final Grant 
Certification N/A    

Grant Certification Local Enterprise Partnership Interim  
Certification 3 Final Grant 

Certification N/A    

Operational Effectiveness of Social Care Practice 2 Final Partial 6 - 6 - 

P
age 87



Internal Audit Work Programme – 2019-20                                                                                                      Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 17 of 18 

       
Unrestricted 

Audit Type Audit Area Quarter Status Opinion No of 
Rec 

1 = Major  3 = 
Medium 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Operational Social Care Caseload Management 2 Final Reasonable 1 - 1 - 

Operational Use of Pupil Premium for Looked after Children 2 Final Partial  18 4 10 4 

Operational IR35 Compliance  2 Final Partial 4 - 2 2 

Follow up  Portesham School 3 Final N/A 14 - 6 8 

Key Control Key Control – Financial Reconciliations 2 Final Partial 4 - 2 2 

Operational Deputyship for Service Users 1 Final Reasonable 5 - 2 3 

Follow up Continuing Health Care 4 Final  N/A 0 - - - 

Operational Risk Management 3 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

Operational Housing Benefits 2 Final Substantial 0 - - - 

Operational  Public Law Outline 2 Final  Partial 7 - 3 4 

Operational  Council Tax and Business Rates  2 Final  Substantial  0 - - - 

Operational Budget Monitoring and Reporting to SLT and 
Members 2 Final Reasonable 2 - - 2 

Operational Corporate Performance 3 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

Operational Duplicate Payments 1-4 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

Operational NFI 1-4 Final Advice and 
Guidance     

P
age 88



Internal Audit Work Programme – 2019-20                                                                                                      Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 18 of 18 

       
Unrestricted 

Audit Type Audit Area Quarter Status Opinion No of 
Rec 

1 = Major  3 = 
Medium 

Recommendation 
1 2 3 

Reporting 

Operational Budget Management – Officers 2 Draft      

Operational Effectiveness and Implementation of EHCP’s 2 Draft      

Operational Preparations for 2020-21 budget 3 Draft      

Operational Disaggregation of Electronic Records to BCP 3 Draft      

Operational Equalities and Diversity 4 Discussion      

Operational Cyber Security 4 Discussion      

Operational Programme Management – Children’s 2 Discussion      

Operational Contract Compliance 2 Discussion      

Key Control Accounts Payable 4 Discussion      

Key Control Main Accounting 4 Discussion      

Operational Disaggregation of Paper Records to BCP 3 Discussion      

Operational Capital Programme/budget 2 Discussion      

Operational Commercial Contract Management (to include 
contract management in Children’s and Adults)  2 Discussion      

In Progress 

Operational Car Parking  4 Fieldwork       

 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit  Risk  Special Investigations  Consultancy

Unrestricted

  
  Dorset Council
   Proposed Internal Audit Plan & Planning Approach 
   Quarter 2 - 2020/21
   P

age 91

A
genda Item

 8



Internal Audit Planning: A Revised Approach  - Quarter 2 - 2020/21

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 1

Unrestricted

Revised Approach to Internal Audit Planning 2020/21As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, SWAP has had to 
adapt and change its focus in the 
short-term. 

This has involved the 
redeployment of SWAP staff 
directly into the Authority to 
assist with the response to the 
huge challenges faced. 

Following liaison with SLT, we 
also effectively ‘paused’ our 
programme of internal audit 
work in March (through to the 
end of June) to allow the 
Authority to fully focus on the 
response effort. 

With the Authority moving into a 
recovery phase from COVID-19, 
we are now looking to re-
commence audit work in some 
areas; helping to assist with 
recovery efforts.

SWAP were due to present an internal audit plan covering the first six months of 2020/21 to the Audit & Governance 
Committee on the 24th March 2020. However, due to the COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent lockdown, this Committee 
was postponed. 

Clearly a lot has changed since that date, and as such, an updated approach to internal audit work and planning has had 
to be implemented. The plan that had previously been prepared is likely to remain relevant in many respects, but the 
huge effort the Authority is undertaking in relation to response and recovery from COVID-19, is likely to push back a 
significant proportion of this work. As such, we have briefly set out below our updated approach to Internal Audit 
Planning in 2020/21:

Quarter 1 – 2020/21
In liaison with the Authority’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT), we effectively ‘paused’ our programme of internal audit 
work in March (through to the end of June) to allow the Authority to fully focus on the response effort to COVID-19. 
Internal Audit staff were redeployed into areas of high need (Business Grant Payments & Registration Services). 
However, we did maintain a level of internal audit work including investigations and grant certifications.

Quarter 2 – 2020/21
With the Authority moving into a recovery phase from COVID-19, we are now looking to re-commence audit work in 
several areas; helping to assist with recovery efforts. However, we recognise there are still likely to be priority & capacity 
challenges in certain service areas, and as such Quarter 2 is likely to involve a hybrid approach in terms of supporting 
the Authority with recovery efforts, as well as re-commencing internal audit assurance work.  

Quarter 3 onwards – 2020/21
Dependent on any future re-emergence or residual COVID-19 challenges faced by the Authority, from Quarter 3 
onwards we will look to fully re-align our audit plan & work with the key corporate risks. As such, a further programme 
of work will be brought to the September meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee. 

P
age 92



Internal Audit Planning: A Revised Approach  - Quarter 2 - 2020/21

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 2

Unrestricted

Revised Approach to Internal Audit Planning 2020/21 (continued)2020/21 will clearly present an 
exceptional year for the 
Authority   (as well as SWAP). 

The approach we take to our 
audit planning and work will 
need to remain flexible; looking 
to achieve a balance of 
supporting the Authority in 
response and recovery efforts, 
whilst maintaining our statutory 
internal audit role.  

It is the responsibility of the Authority’s Senior Leadership Team, and the Audit & Governance Committee, to 
determine that the audit coverage contained within the overall programme of work across 2020/21 is sufficient and 
appropriate in providing independent assurance against the key risks faced by the organisation (set in the context of 
the unprecedented challenges faced by COVID-19).

When reviewing the revised internal audit planning approach, key questions for SLT and the Audit & Governance 
Committee to consider include: 

 Does the revised planning approach achieve a proportionate balance between assisting the Authority with the 
unprecedented challenges it faces, whilst maintaining our statutory internal audit role and independence?

 Will the revised planning approach provide sufficient, independent assurance to monitor the organisation’s risk 
profile effectively?

Further Planning detail
Our planning paper which was due to be presented at Audit & Governance Committee on 24.03.20 can be viewed here: 
(https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s18572/SWAP%20Internal%20Audit%20Planning%20Paper%20-
%2024%20March%202020.pdf).

The provides further detail with regards to our internal audit planning process, the internal audit service from SWAP 
(including quality assurance and our performance), as well as our Internal Audit Charter which is presented annually. It 
also introduced the concept of Agile Auditing, which we will be looking to embrace throughout 2020/21.

P
age 93

https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s18572/SWAP%20Internal%20Audit%20Planning%20Paper%20-%2024%20March%202020.pdf
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s18572/SWAP%20Internal%20Audit%20Planning%20Paper%20-%2024%20March%202020.pdf


Internal Audit Planning: A Revised Approach  - Quarter 2 - 2020/21

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 3

Internal Audit Risk Assessment (updated)Our documented risk assessment 
helps to ensure that sufficient and 
appropriate areas are identified for 
consideration in our internal audit 
programme of work.

As above, it is the responsibility of the 
Authority’s Senior Leadership Team, 
and the Audit & Governance 
Committee to ensure that, with 
consideration of our risk assessment, 
the overall programme of work 
throughout the year contains 
sufficient and appropriate coverage.

Our original 2020/21 internal audit programme of work was based on the documented risk assessment below. 

We have now updated this to highlight key areas where we believe the risk profile has increased following the 
COVID-19 pandemic (included in bold), as well as any new risk areas (included in italics):

Risk 
Assessment

Risk Management
Financial Management
Corporate Governance (including Culture)
Performance Management
Cyber Security 
Fraud Prevention & Detection 
Information Management
Procurement and/ or Contract Management
Transformation Programme Management & 
Benefits Realisation

Local Issues Regional Issues

National IssuesCore Areas of 
Recommended Coverage

Digital Strategy & Transformation    
Financial Sustainability & Use of Reserves  
Achievement of Transformation Saving Targets 
Robustness of Medium-Term Financial Plans
Emergency Planning & Business Continuity
Commissioning & Contract Management
Effective Recruitment & Retention of Staff

  Increase in EHCP’s
  Health & Safety (including office adaptations  
.  remote working & well-being of staff)
  Homelessness
 
    

                    Climate Change
  Emergency Response to Pandemic
  Impact of Brexit

Children's/ Adult’s Social Care Delivery/ Financing
Children's Social Care Recruitment & Retention
Use of Artificial Intelligence, Robotics & Machine Learning 
Management & Effective Use of Big Data
Apprenticeship Schemes
Alternative Delivery Models to Deliver Services
Supply Chain Management & Supplier Resilience
Oversight of Schools/ Standards in Schools
Ongoing GDPR Compliance

LGR consolidation & continued convergence
Management of financial position & reserves
Loss of ICT service or data loss/ breach
Recruitment & retention of workforce
Response to a major event
Maintaining relationships with key Partners
Use of evidence and data
Service transformation & benefits realisation
Loss of corporate knowledge
Climate and Ecological 
Emergency

P
age 94



Proposed Internal Audit Plan: Quarter 2 - 2020/21                                                                                       APPENDIX 1

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Page 4

It should be noted that the audit titles and high-level scopes included below are only indicative at this stage for planning our resources.  At the start of each audit, an initial discussion 
will be held to agree the specific Terms of Engagement for the piece of work, which includes the objective and scope for the review.

Areas of Coverage and Brief Scope Senior Leadership 
Team Lead

Priority (H, M, L) and        
Proposed Timing 

(Earlier, Later)
School Transport
Assurance over the setting, monitoring and projection of the SEN and mainstream school transport budgets Theresa Leavy Higher/ Earlier

Protection of Property/Assets
Provide advisory support with the handling of valuables & money resulting from Protection of Property cases Gill Vickers Higher/ Earlier

Infection Control Funding Assurance
Provide assurance over the allocation & oversight of Infection Control Funding to Care Providers Aidan Dunn Higher/ Later

Test and Trace Funding Assurance 
Assurance over the use of the £1.3M to fund test and trace capabilities within Dorset Sam Crowe Higher/ Later

Coroners 
A review of the shared arrangements between DC and BCP John Sellgren Medium/ Earlier

Harbours
Provide advisory support on the Harbour Service convergence and transformation project John Sellgren Medium/ Earlier

Waste Operator’s Licence 
To undertake a compliance/health check audit to ensure the risk of licence revocation is minimised John Sellgren Medium/ Earlier

Grant Certifications
Certifying grant claims, to include Troubled Families, LEP Gateway Growth Hub Aidan Dunn Medium/ Ongoing

Data Analytics
Use of data analytics to provide assurance over duplicate payments and the use of one-time vendor payments Aidan Dunn Medium/ Ongoing

Assurance work over the Authority’s COVID-19 recovery plan; specifically gains made and lessons learnt John Sellgren Higher/ Later

Further requested assurance/ advisory/ support work, as required SLT Higher/ Ongoing

Reactive investigations & independent complaint support work, as required SLT Medium/ Ongoing

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan

Date of 
Meeting

Item Purpose / Key lines of Enquiry Lead councillor / officer

10 August 2020
Dorset Council Statement of 
Accounts

To receive the Statement of 
Accounts & External Audit report 
for Dorset Council

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Annual Audit Letters To consider the Deloitte external 
auditor annual audit letters in relation 
to the 2019-20 accounts for the legacy 
sovereign authorities of Dorset 
Council.

Review of People Strategy To undertake a review of the 
governance arrangements for the 
Dorset Council People Strategy

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Corporate Director (HR 
& OD)

Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q1 (to include update from 
Children’s Services)

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

Value for money – policies and 
Procedures

Request from Minute 72 – 20 
May 2020

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 13



28 September 2020
Financial Report Quarter 1 2020/21 To review and scrutinise the Quarter 

1 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Treasury Management Annual 
Report

To receive a Treasury Management 
update

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To receive the report and note the 
internal audit progress for 2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Dev & S151

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 – 
updated for second half of the year

To receive the Internal Audit Plan 
updated for the second half of 
2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Internal Audit Annual Report To receive the internal Audit 
Annual Report

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of 
the controls identified to bring 
down the level of risk to an 
acceptable level

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council 
Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

P
age 98



Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Services
Monitoring Officer

16 November 2020
Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q2

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

18 January 2021
Financial Report Quarter 2 2020/21 To review and scrutinise the Quarter 

2 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To receive the report and note the 
internal audit progress for 2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of the 
controls identified to bring down the 
level of risk to an acceptable level

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

P
age 99



Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Services
Monitoring Officer

22 February 2021
Financial Report Quarter 3 2020/21 
(Theresa Leavy & Vivienne 
Broadhurst to attend)

To review and scrutinise the Quarter 
3 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To enable the committee to consider 
progress against the Internal Audit 
Plan for the second year half. This 
will include reporting of and a focus 
upon the highest priority actions 
identified through the Plan

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 & 
Internal Audit Charter

To approve the proposed internal 
audit plan for 2021/22. The plan 
brought to the committee for 
approval will have been discussed 
with both the Leader and SLT

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact - Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of the 
controls identified to bring down the

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

P
age 100



level of risk to an acceptable level
Annual Audit Update (External Audit) To receive an update from the 

council’s External Auditor
External Audit

Annual Governance Statement To review and challenge the content 
of the statutory Annual Governance 
Statement ahead of its signing by the 
Leader of Council and Chief 
Executive

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact - Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer

Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Service
Monitoring Officer

Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q3

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

19 April 2021
Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q4

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

P
age 101



Other items raised by Audit and Governance Committee requiring further consideration

Issue Notes Date raised
Workforce stress / mental health issues The committee have raised this as a 

potential area of work but note that it is 
linked to current transformation work

At committee on 7 November 2019

How Dorset Council holds and shares 
information

It is understood that some work is being 
undertaken in this area.

A councillor workshop on the Dorset

At committee on 7 November 2019

P
age 102



Council transformation programmes is 
being held on 10 January 2020. The 
suggestion is that councillors attend this 
session and following this, the committee 
give further consideration to whether any 
further work is required in this area

Peer Challenge Report Chairman requested – Bridget Downton to 
advise when final report completed.

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Dorset Council's Performance Framework
	dorset-council-performance-management-framework-2020-06

	6 Annual Governance Statement
	MASTER Dorset Annual Governance Statement_
	Appendix A Local Code - 2020 June 2020 DT
	Appendix B DT Risk Management Update - May 20

	7 Internal Audit 2019/20 Progress
	8 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 and Planning Approach
	13 Forward Plan

